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CITY OF
\YZ/INICICI ™

RANODAD

August 30, 2018

To the Citizens of the City of Winfield, Kansas
Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners

This document is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Winfield, Kansas for
the year ended December 31, 2017. This report was prepared by the City’s finance department.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City. We believe the report, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects. We also believe it is presented in a manner designed to set
forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds. Finally, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and
Statistical. The introductory section includes a description of the City, including services provided, and
explanation of the City’s accounting system and budgetary controls, and a brief discussion of the city's
economic condition and outlook. The City’s organizational chart is also included to assist the reader in
understanding the structure of the City. The financial section includes the independent auditor's report,
Management's Discussion & Analysis, Government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
notes to the financial statements, and individual and combing statements and schedules. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis.

The reader is specifically directed to Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which immediately
follows the independent auditor's report. MD&A provides a narrative explanation and overview of
significant features and trends reflected by data in the financial statements.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that adequate
a unting data is ¢« | to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The cost of the internal controls
should not outweigh their benefits. Thus, the City of Winfield’'s internal controls are designed to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Kansas Statute 75-1122 requires an annual audit of all funds of the City by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of Swindoll, Janzen, Hawk & Loyd, LLC issued an unmodified opinion on the City of
Winfield’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. The independent auditor’s report
is located on page 9 in the Financial Section of this report.

Profile of the Government

The City of Winfield, incorporated in 1873, has a population of 12,332 and has an incorporated area of
12.35 square miles. Winfield is located in south central Kansas, less than an hour away from Wichita,
and two hours from Tulsa and Oklahoma City. Winfield serves as the county seat for Cowley County,
population approximately 35,361.
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The City is unique in providing a full range of municipal utility services to its citizens, including electric and
gas utilities, water, wastewater, and sanitation services. Other mi icipal services include police and fire
protection, ambulance services, construction and maintenance of streets, drainage facilities and other
infrastructure, recreation and cultural activities, a municipal golf course, community and industrial
development, planning and zoning, building inspection, cemetery operations and maintenance, general
administration, and internal support services. The City provides single-stream recycling to its citizens,
along with composting site facilities, available at no charge to area residents. In addition, library services
i | low-income hous | are provided by component units of t City. Additional information on the
component units can be found in Note 1. in the notes to the financial statements.

The City of Winfield operates under a Commission/Man:  form of government. One member of the
three-member commission is elected annually by the Commission to act as Mayor. The City Manager is
appointed by the City Commission and is responsible to them for the management of all City employees
and administration of all City affairs. Regular city elections are held in odd years. The person receiving
the largest number of votes is elected to a four-year term and the person receiving the second largest
number of votes is elected to a two-year term.

Expenditures are authorized by a budget approved by the City Commission as required by Stz atute.
The State statute level of budgetary control (i.e. the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at an individual fund level, but is monitored by depa 1ent within
each fund. The finance department continually reviews and approves all significant deviations from
budget authorizations. The Kansas cash basis and budget laws requires cash be on hand before an
expenditure is authorized, that all expenditures be idgeted (unless specifically exempted y statute),
and that the budget not exceed anticipated revenues, including carry forward balances. Budget-to-actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund in which an adopted annual operating
budget is required by Kansas statute.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The intersection of U.S. Highway 160 and U.S. 77 is located in the center of Winfield. The cities of
Arkansas City and Winfield jointly own Strother Field Airport and Industrial Park, located less than seven
miles from Winfield. Many of the county area’s employers have work forces consisting of residents of
both the City of Winfield and the City of Arkansas City, located twelve miles to the south of Winfield.
Manufacturing and services are the largest sectors of employment in Cowley County of which include
three Fortune 500 companies, Rubbermaid, WestRock, and GE Aviation. The GE aviation plant has
announced it will begin making engines, specifically the Passport 20 engine. The Winfield ication was
chosen from 80 other potential GE sites for producing the engine. Building these engines in Winfield will
not only create jobs, it will stabilize employment. GE, Strotl  Field location, will invest approximately $7
million in machinery and equipment that will enal : the Strother field ant to assemble, maintain, repair
and overhaul the new engine.

Southwes n College, a private liberal arts four year institution established in 1885, has an estimated
enrollment of over 1767 full-time students, including online. Southwestern has made major infrastructure
improvements in recent years, including a $4.8 million renovation of e Richard L. Jantz football stadium
and the Richardson Performing Arts Auditorium.

2017 sales tax again had a slight decrease of .88% under the 2016 sales tax collections which does not
include the increase in the sales tax rate that went into effect July of 2014. The City of Winfield approved
the imposition of a general purpose four-tenths of one percent (.40%) city-wide retailers’ sales tax for
renovations to finance costs of certain library, street and other capital improvements throughout the City.

Real estate property assessed valuation increased 0.77% from 2016 to 2017, reflecting small but steady
property values. The City issued 12 new dwelling unit permits, and a total of $8,281,458 of building
permits in 2017. This is a very slight increase to the 2016 statistics of dwelling permits, and a slight
decrease in building permits issued (overall) of $8,375. Winfield was not shielded from the struggling
national economy in late 2008 and through 2009. Mid 2009 unemployment peaked at 8.2%, compared to
the January 2008 rate of 4.0%.The years 2010 through 2( ; have shown gradual turnaround. At the end
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and Phase |l of this project. Phase | considers design and consulting for evaluating the demolition
of the building, or possible re-use of part of the building. Phase Il is for design services for the bay
addition to the Fire Department portion of the project. Plans for the future use of this fac y will be
carried out over a period of three to five years. The process is ongoing.

o The City entered into a joint project with the Kansas Department of Transportation for
improvements on 12" Avenue to increase the footprint of the street to accommodate t k traffic
for Rubbermaid. The project was completed by Bryant & Bryant for a total cost of $1,117,717. The
State of Kansas participated in the project with $725,000 with the remaining paid for by the City.

o The City entered into an agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation authorizing a
KLINK Project for improvements US Highway 77 from 6" Avenue to Mani g Street; and on US
Highway 160 from Loomis Street to C/ =ge Street. The contract was awarded to Flint Hills
Materials, LLC for a total cost of $$398,324. The State of Kansas' participation in the cost of
construction and construction engineering will be 50%.

o The City entered into an agreement with Vance Brothers, Kansas City, Missouri to do micro
sealing on selected streets within the City. The total project cost was $99,134.

o The City entered into an agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation forr lacement
of the 14" Avenue bridge. The total cost of the project is expected to be $1.8 m >n witn the State
participating with 80% of the cost.

o The City entered into an agreement with APAC-Kansas Inc. Shears Division for local street asphalt
work for 2017. Contract amount is $317,147.

o The City is in negotiations for two possible new developments: Stonebrook Division to be locz |
at 19™" Avenue and Bliss Street and will provide construction of du; :xes and multi-family housing;
Country Club Villas, to be located on Country CI'  Road right next to the Country Club Golf
Course, is expected to provide 22 new dwelling units.

o Other possible plans upcoming for the community are a dog park to be located at Black Creek
Park and a performance venue sponsored and paid for by the Rotary Club to commemorate their
100 year anniversary to be cated in Island Park.

o The most recent Standard & Poor's Rating Services affirmed its ‘A+' long-term rating on Winfield,
Kansas' General Obligation (GO) bonds, based on improved general fund balance levels, strong
management team, and strong liquidity.

o TI ty continued its dev < id ofl it tructu  improv nents, related to ADA
compliance.

Certificate of Achievement and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Winfield for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the year « led December 31, 2016. This was the Nineteenth
consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe at our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the certificate of Achievement Program'’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.



The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the assistance of numerous
persons both in and out of local government. The firm of Swindoll, Janzen, Hawk & Loyd, LLC provided
independent audit services. Specific appreciation is expressed to the dedicated staff of the City
accounting department. We would also like to thank members of the other City departments who
assisted and contributed to this report. Finally, preparation of this report would not be possible without
the support of the City Commission. We express special appreciation to them for their leadership in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a professional, responsible and
progressive manner in the best interests of the residents of Winfield.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeremy Willmoth Brenda Peters Kim Reynolds
City Manager City Clerk City Treasurer
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SWINDOLL
R JANZEN
HAWK &
LOYD, Lic

Certified Public Accountants More Than list Niuumbers Since 1936

Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Winfield, Kansas 67019

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Winfield, Kansas (City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’'s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Winfield Public Library and the Winfield Housing Authority, which represents
100 percent, 100 percent, and 100 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the
discretely presented component units. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely
presented component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the Kansas
Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materiai misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of tl  financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate

sjhl.com
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remaining fund information of the City of Winfield, Kansas, as of December 31, 2017, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements, the 2017 financial statements have been restated to
correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that = management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, other post-employment benefits other then
pensions, the schedule of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of the
City’s contributions, and the notes to the required supplementary information as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other auditors, have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency w  management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and schedules and statistical section as listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
top e the | sfi cia Such inforn  ion ik | to tl iditi pre

app 1the auditof{  »>as atemer andcel al procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to tt  underlying accounting and other  :ords used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial ste 1 its themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stz : of America by
us and the other auditors. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements
and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

5M‘ g’""“' /’ldu/é - ngp(' LiLC&

Swindoll, Janzen, nawk & Loyd, LLC
Hutchinson, Kansas
August 30, 2018
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CITY OF WINFIELD KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017

As management for the City of Winfield, Kansas (the City) we offer readers of the City's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Finances for this City are multifaceted and quite complex. As such, management sires for this narrative
to be informative beyond what is seen on the face of the statements and to discuss the financial activities
of the City. We hope you find these comments helpful as you read through them.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflow of resources for the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $61.3 million (net position). Of this amount, a
negative $3.16 million (unrestricted net position) is the balance. The existence of such a deficit does not
necessarily mean that a government is on the brink of fiscal disaster—additional information is needed to
place it in context.

The City's total net position decreased by $950 thousand during the fiscal year.

At the close of 2017, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2.46
million. There is a negative $2.5 million of unassigned Fund Balance.

At the close of 2017, the City's primary operating fund, the general fund, had a balance of $984 thousand
or 12.02% of the total general fund revenues of $8.18 million.

The City’s total long-term debt decreased $1.7 million during the current fiscal year. The City continues to
make payments on existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The City's financial report consists of the following sections:

e Management Discussion and Analysis;

e The basic financial statements, which include the government-wide and the fund financial
statements, along with the notes to the basic financial statements;

e Combining and individual statements and schedules for non-major funds; and,

o Statistical section

The basic financial statements of the City include the government-wide financial statements and the fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial statements and are
essential for the reader's understanding of the financial statements. Other supplementary information,
including the statistical section, is also included at the end of this report to provide additional context and
information for the reader.

Government-wide financial statements present the results of the City's operations using the accrual
basis of accounting, the basis of accounting used by private-sector businesses. These statements focus
on the long-term financial picture of the City as a whole.

The statement of net position reports all the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as net position. Net position is
an important measure of the City’s overall financial health. The increases and decreases in net position
can be monitored to determine whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.
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CITY OF WINFIELD. KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Ana-lysis
December 31, 2017

The statement of activities shows how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.
The unique feature of this statement is how it shows the revenues and expenses related to specific
programs and how much of the programs were supported by the general taxes of the City. Since this
statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, all revenues and expenses are included,
regardless of when cash is received.

Both statements show the operations of the City broken down by governmental activities and business-
type activities. Governmental activities are the operations of the City generally supported by taxes, such
as public works, public safety, parks, land management, and general administration. Business-type
activities are operations of the City that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges. These consist of the five utilities the City operates: electric, natural gas,
water, wastewater, and storm water along with the Quail Ridge Golf Course.

Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City’s government. These statements report
the City’'s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. A fund is a grouping
of related accounts that is used to maintain contro! over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. These funds are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable
and available, and expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, except for long-
term debt and other similar items, which are recorded when due. The focus, therefore, is on the short-
term financial picture of the operations reported rather than the City as a whole. Most of the City's basic
operations are reported in the Governmental Fund financial statements. The information reported in these
statements can be compared to the governmental activities information in the government-wide
statements. The reconciliation at the end of the fund financial statements details the relationship between
the two types of financial statements.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund and capital projects fund, all of which
are major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form
of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

] ~ funq u Ibytl City account tivi that li al

d in the private sector. Funds that charge fees for services pro )utside customers including
other local governments are called enterprise funds. These funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Funds that charge
fees for services provided to departments within the reporting government are known as internal service
funds. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting; thus, the only reconciling items needed
between the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund
financial statements relate to the elimination of internal service fund activity and capital asset ownership
transfers.

The City has six enterprise funds: Electric Fund, Natural Gas Fund, Water Fund, Wastewater Fund,
Refuse Fund, and the Quail Ridge Golf Course Fund. The City has two internal service funds:
Management Services Fund, and Operational Services Fund. The Electric, Natural Gas, Water and
Wastewater funds are the only ones considered major for presentation purposes.

Fiduciary funds are used by the City to account for resources held by the City for the benefit of a third
party. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, since the resources

-12-



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017

of those funds are not available to support the City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes described above, this
report also contains required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its
obligation to provide postemployment benefits to its employees and supplementary information regarding
non-major funds have been included to give the reader greater context of the information provided.

Analysis of the Government-Wide Financial Statements

Analysis of net position

As indicated earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial condition.
For the City, assets plus deferred outflows exceeded liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources by
$61.36 million at the close of the current fiscal year. The City's net position decreased by $950 thousand
from the prior year, with business-type activities accounting for a decrease of $1.01 million offset by an
increase of $64 thousand in governmental activities.

City of Winfield
Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total _
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 201u
Current and other assets $ 17,280,816 $ 13,770,320 $ 11,978544 $ 11778554 $ 29,259,360 $ 25,548,874
Capital assets 30,736,216 30,359,236 41,676,464 43,4"° 980 72,412,680 73,779,216
Total assets 48,017,032 44,129,556 53,655,008 55,100,034 101,672,040 99 779,090
Deferred Outflows 1,466,621 1,608,923 972,742 1,032,391 2,439,363 2,641,314
Long-term liabilities 16,295,676 17,346,289 8,754,108 9,713,505 25,049,784 27,059,794
Other liabilities 9,095,939 4,306,406 3,932,399 3,568,323 12 9&‘““ - 7 274 700
Total liabilities 25,391,615 21,652,695 12,686,507 13,281,828 - 00,078, 1cc o, D0, 0D
Deferred Inflows 4,378,518 4,436,031 295,692 289,609 4,674,210 4,725,640
Net position:
Net investment in
Capital Assets 20,175,047 18,881,347 36,999,468 38,952,498 57,174,515 38,386,472
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 861,375 433,962 3,308,708 2,574,319 4,170,083 3,008,281
General Government 101,910 115,406 - - 101,910 1154
Public Safety 562,503 559,189 - - 562,503 559,189
Public Works 437,718 220,052 - - 437,718 220,052
Health & Welfare 245,523 144,050 - - 245,523 144,050
Environmental Prot. 39,720 39,406 - - 39,720 39,406
Cultural & Recreation 97,261 92,269 - - 97,261 92,269
Economic Devel. 781,839 730,560 - - 781,839 730,560
Enabling Legislation - - - - - -
Debt Service 909,581 761,442 - - 909,581 761,442
Cemetery Endow. - - - - - -
Unrestricted (deficit) (4,498,957) (2,277 °3ﬂ 1,337,375 1,132,671 (3,161,582) (1,195,259)

Total net position $ 19713520 § 19645,:53 $ 41645551 & 42850488 § 61,350,071 § 62,309,241

Assets increased by $2.34 million. Governmental Activities Assets increased $3.89 million with the largest
change occurring in cash ($3.06 million). Business-Type Activities Assets decreased $1.54 million with
the largest change occurring in Capital Assets ($1.74 million reduction).
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Liabilities increased by $3.14 million. Governmental Activities Liabilities increased $3.74 million with the
largest change occurring in temporary notes ($4.82 million). Business-Type Activities Liabilities decreased
$595 thousand with the largest change occurring in Noncurrent Liabilities Due in more than one year
(%959 thousand reduction).

Approximately 93% of the City’'s net position reflect a net investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and construction work in process), less any
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, the capital assets are not available for future spending. The City has about $7.34
million of restricted net position, which represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be spent. The unrestricted net position represents the amount of net position that is neither
net investment in capital assets nor restricted. The City’s unrestricted net position at December 31, 2017
was a deficit of $3.16 million with -$4.5 million in governmental activities, and $1.34 million in business-
type activities.

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The following table reflects the revenues and expenses for the City's activities for the year ended
December 31, 2017, and illustrate the comparison between the current year, and the prior year:

City of Winfield
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Tt s M
Revenues: 2017 2016 PN P 2011/ zu19
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,065219 $ 2081863 $ 37,131,486 $ 36,753,989 $ 40,196,705 $ 38,835,852
Operating grants and contributions 735,755 1,295,256 - - 735,755 1,295,256
Capital grants and contributions 1,603,376 307,425 - - 1,603,376 307,425
General revenues: - -
Property taxes 4,200,161 4,122,880 - - 4,200,161 4,122,880
S laxes 2,610,928 2,593,154 - - 2,610,928 2,593,154
Franchise taxes 154,830 162,633 - - 154,830 162,633
Transient Guest Tax 92,363 97.115 - - 92,363 97,115
Alcohol Beverage Tax 75,574 57,006 - - 75,574 57,006
Investment Earnings 36,798 27,740 51,035 46,676 87,833 74,416
Other - - - - - -
Total revenues 12,575,004 10 748 N7D 27 420 R4 25,800,665 49,757,525 47,545 "'&
Expenses:
General government 1,313,256 1,188,911 - - 1,313,256 1,188,911
Public safety 6,590,362 5,839,730 - - 6,590,362 5,839,730
Public works 1,426,464 1,874,415 - - 1,426,464 1,874,415
Cemetery 155,216 176,880 - - 155,216 176,880
Culture and recreation 2,352,435 2,369,941 678,223 581,613 3,030,658 2,951,554
Health & welfare 935,641 78,513 - - 935,641 78,513
Economic development 461,928 278,007 - - 461,928 278,007
Interest on long-term debt 303,648 154,058 - - 303,648 154,058
Electric - - 25,798,434 26,856,102 25,798,434 26,856,102
Natural Gas - - 3,469,446 3,087,782 3,469,446 3,087,782
Water - - 2,434,505 2,136,541 2,434,505 2,136,541
Wastewater - - 2,018,355 2,302,971 2,018,355 2,302,971
Refuse - 1R 0aT 1,363,589 1,313,917 1,363,589
Total expenses 13,538,950 11,960,4 36,328,598 40 251 830 42289 053
Change in net position before transfers (963,946) (1,215,20y, R 472,067 ' +05,695 \+43,316)
Transfers 2,483,578 3,020 218 ”,483,578) (3,039,316) -
Change in net position after transfers 1,519,632 1,820,000 \1,013,937) (2,567,249) 505,695 (¢ vonw
Net position, beginning 18,193,888 17,825,820 42,659,488 45,226,737 60,853,376 63,052,557
Restated Capital Assets . - (1,455.865) _ - - (1,455,865)
Net position, ending ~ w0 R70 0§ 18,193,888 $ 42,659,488 $ 61,359,071 $ 60 °=° 7=

The city’s net position in governmental activities increased $1.5 million due to the restatement of capital
assets. The chart below illustrates how the City's various governmental activities program revenue vs.
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program expenses fared in 2017. You will notice that this restatement is a cause for most of the variances
from the prior year.
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e Public safety activities continue to represent the largest governmental activity expense, $6.6
million, or 49% of the City’s total governmental activity expenses. Public safety expenses include
police, fire, ambulance, building inspection and public parking services provided by the City.
These expenses increased $751 thousand or 12.85% over the prior year due to the purchase of a
new fire engine.

e Culture and recreation activities account for $2.35 million, or about 17% of the total governmental
activity expenses. This activity includes the Aquatic Center, parks maintenance and the
recreation operations at the City of Winfield Lake, the Broadway Sports Complex, and the
Winfield Fairgrounds. These expenses were $18 thousand or -0.74% less than the prior year due
to reductions in capital expenses.

e Public works activities account for $1.43 million, or 10.5% of the total governmental activity
expenses. This activity includes the street pavement maintenance program. These expenses
were $448 thousand or -23.90% less than the prior year due to projects that were funded through
KLINK in FY 2016, that were not funded in FY 2017.

e General government activities account for $1.31 million, or 9.70% of the total governmental
activity expenses. ...is activity includes cost not directly attributable to any other category such as
street lights, property insurance, management services, etc. These expenses were $124
thousand or 10.46% more than the prior year due to an adjustment in depreciation expenses from
FY 2016 to FY 2017.

The chart below illustrates the City's overall program and general revenues for governmental activities in
2017.
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Business-type Activities

The City operates five utilities and a municipal golf course. Combined the electric and gas utilities
comprise 82% of the total business-type activity charges.

The City's net position related to business-type activities decreased by $1.04 million from the prior year.
While most of these activities are covering their operating cost, the losses come from their collective
inability to cover their portion of the shared costs with the governmental activities programs.

30,000,000 A
25,000,000 A
20,000,000 -
15,000,000 -
10,000,000 -
5,000,000 A
Electric Natural Gas Water Wastewater Refuse Quail Ridge Golf
Course
W Revenue Ixpenses

Highlights in the business-type activities area include:

* The Electric Fund had revenues of $27.7 million, which was an increase of $221 thousand or
0.81%. The primary factor for the revenue increase was an increase in sales. Expenses were
$25.8 million, which was $1.06 million, or -3.94% less than the prior year. The primary reason for
the expense reduction was an adjustment in depreciation expenses from FY 2016 to FY 2017.
Revenues exceeded expenses by $1.89 million.

e The Natural Gas Fund had revenues of $3.33 million, which was an increase of $190 thousand or
6.07%. The primary factor for the revenue increase was an increase in the sale of natural gas.
Expenses were $3.47 million, which was $382 thousand, or 12.36% more than the prior year. The
primary reason for the expense increase was an increase in the purchase of natural gas, as well
as an increase in capital expenses. Revenues were less than expenses by $144 thousand.

e The Water Fund had revenues of $2.51 million, which was an increase of $158 thousand or
6.72%. The primary factor for the revenue increase was an increase in water sales. Expenses
were $2.43 million, which was $298 thousand, or 13.95% more than the prior year. The primary
reason for the expense increase was an adjustment in depreciation expenses from FY 2016 to
FY 2017. Revenues were more than expenses by $73 thousand.
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e The Wastewater Fund had revenues of $1.87 million, which was a decrease of $232 thousand or
-11.04%. The primary factor for the revenue decrease was a drop in user fees, and a drop in
reimbursable services. Expenses were $2.02 million, which was $285 thousand, or 12.36% less
than the prior year. The primary reason for the expense decrease was the Fund did not have
enough cash on hand to make the final lease payment, so we had to finance that payment.
Revenues were less than expenses by $149 thousand.

e The Refuse Fund had revenues of $1.42 million, which was an increase of $52 thousand or
3.82%. The primary factor for the revenue increase was to eliminate lease activity for proprietary
funds leases for GAAP purposes. Expenses were $1.31 million, which was $50 thousand, or
3.64% less than the prior year. The primary reason for the expense reduction was an adjustment
in depreciation expenses from FY 2016 to FY 2017. Revenues were more than expenses by
$106 thousand.

e The Quail Ridge Golf Course Fund had revenues of $318 thousand, which was a decrease of $12
thousand or -3.67%. The primary factor for the revenue decrease was refunds and advertising
revenues. Expenses were $678 thousand, which was $97 thousand, or 16.61% more than the
prior year. The primary reason for the expense increase was an adjustment in depreciation
expenses from FY 2016 to FY 2017. Revenues were less than expenses by $360 thousand.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's 1
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reports by the
City include the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds.

Manaral l:und

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total
fiind balance was $984 thousand. an increase of $26 thousand compared to the prior year. As a measure

‘he ¢ 1eral fund's liquidity, it 1y be useful to ¢t pare the available fund balance to total general fund
expenaitures. Available fund balance represents 11.78% of total general fund expenditures of .35
million.

The total revenue in the general fund was $8.18 million, an increase of $187 thousand or 2.34% over the
previous fiscal year mostly due to increases in EMS fees.

The total expenditures in the general fund were $8.35 million, a decrease of $574 thousand or -6.43%
compared to the previous fiscal year mostly due to an adjustment in depreciation expenses from FY 2016
to FY 2017.

Debt Service Fi-—-

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was $910 thousand, an increase of $148
thousand, or 19.46% compared to the prior year all of which is restricted for the payment of future debt.
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The total revenue was $1.15 million, an increase of $78 thousand or 7.26% over the previous fiscal year
mostly due to an increase from William Newton Hospital to pay for debt issued on their behalf, and a
reduction of payments from the Winfield Recreation Commission as a debt previously issued on their
behalf has been fully repaid.

The total expenditures were $2.22 million, an increase of $738 thousand or 49.83% compared to the
previous fiscal year mostly due to increases in debt service based upon their repayment schedules.

Capital Projects Fund

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance in the major capital project funds was $620
thousand, an increase of $247 thousand compared to the prior year all of which is restricted for future
capital projects.

The total revenue was $4.9 thousand, an increase of $3.5 thousand over the previous fiscal year mostly
due to increases in interest income. The largest financing source to these funds is an interfund transfer
from the General Fund for the %2 cent sales tax attributable to capital projects/equipment.

The total expenditures were $266 thousand, an increase of $118 thousand or 79.68% compared to the
previous fiscal year primarily due to expenses related to the 14" Avenue Bridge replacement project. The
largest financing use is a the interfund transfer out of this fund to the debt service fund to pay for the
temporary notes and bond financing of capital projects/equipment.

Other governmental funds (Combined)

This grouping is the summation of all other special revenue funds. These funds are not considered major
funds, so the detail on each specific fund can be found in the section titled, "Combining Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds".

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balances in all other governmental funds was -$55
thousand, a decrease of $2.2 million compared to the prior year. Most of these projects are funded by
temporary note/bond financing so this negative fund balance is a matter of timing.

The total revenue was $2.76 million, an increase of $744 thousand or 37% over the previous fiscal year
mostly due to payments from the State of Kansas for road projects.

The total expenditures were $6.13 million, an increase of $2.79 million or 84% compared to the previous
fiscal  ir mostly due to road projects planned in FY 2017.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements, but for our business type activities. The funds listed below are the City's major
proprietary funds:

The electric fund had a total net position of $23.47 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is a
decrease of $165 thousand, or -0.70% from the previous year. Much of the reduction to net position is a
reduction in capital assets because of reclassifying assets at a value of $5 thousand or greater.

The natural gas fund had a total net position of $4.46 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is a

decrease of $559 thousand, or -11.14% from the previous year. Most of the reduction to net position is a
reduction in capital assets because of reclassifying assets at a value of $5 thousand or greater.
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City of Winfield Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2n1R
Land $ 1,900,216 $ 1,900,213 $ 830,777 $ 830,777 $ 2730993 $ 2,730,990
Buildings 8,173,292 8,642,917 13,339,031 13,592,579 21,512,323 22,235 496
Improvements 30,059,432 27,443,513 62,911,885 63,061,060 92,971,317 90,504,573
Machinery & Equipment 8,959,557 9,077,551 31,293,798 30,465,443 40,253,355 39,542 994
Less Accumulated Deprec. (19,219,139) (18,325,946) (66,802,002) (64,529,879) (86,021,141) (82,855,825)
Leased Equipment 424,755 - 114,417 - 539,172 -
Less Accumulated Amort. (239,662) - (11,442) - (251,104) -
Construction in Process 777777 o nnn oo - - 677,765 1,620,988
Total v vuiev,e s P e $ 41,676,464 $ 43419980 $ 72412680 $ 73,779,216

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total long-term debt outstanding of $27.87 million. Of
this amount, $13.64 million was general obligation debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
However, $3.99 million of the general obligation debt is supported by business-type activities revenues.

City of Winfield Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 - PRV 2016 2017 2016
General Obligation $ 9,650,000 $ 10,871,807 $ 3,990,000 $ 4,503,193 $ 13,640,000 $ 15,375,000
Capital Leases 358,663 36,458 640,620 1,099,824 999,283 1,136,282
Interfocal Agreement 167,500 32,000 - - 167,500 32,000
Compensated Absences 262,462 253,191 567,152 511,306 829,614 764,497
Net Premium on GO Bonds 452 637 489,095 - - 452 637 489,095
Net OPEB Obligation 302,630 281,387 435,033 398,919 737,663 680,306
Net pension Obligation 6,642,374 6,934,414 4,405,579 4,540,712 11,047,953 11,475,126
Total $ 17,836,266 $ 18,898,352 _$ 10 Nn29 384 $ 11,053,954 $ 27,874,650 AL ‘

...e City's long-term debt decreased by $2.08 million due primarily to retiring $1.74 million on GO debt,
and to the net pension obligation reducing $427 thousand.

The City was assigned an "A+" rating from Standard & Poor's for its general obligation bonds in 2015.
State Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 30% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City is $21.23 million of which the City has
only used 64%.

For additional information on debt administration, see Note 5 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the City's finances.
Questions or requests for more information concerning any of the information provided in this report
should be directed to Finance Department, City of Winfield, 200 E 9th Ave, Winfield, KS 67156.
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Primary Government

Business
Governmental Type Component
Activities Activities Total units
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 8,634,473 $ 4,075,123 $ 12,709,596 $ 721,462
Receivables:
Property taxes 3,773,283 - 3,773,283 -
Special assessment taxes 1,606,631 - 1,606,631 -
Sales taxes 198,284 - 198,284 -
Franchise fees 33,858 - 33,858 -
Economic development loan receivable 176,000 - 176,000 -
Trade accounts, net 316,206 3,239,534 3,555,740 63,849
Due from other governments 1,099,873 - 1,099,873 -
Internal balances 731,956 (731,956) - -
Advances from fiduciary type funds - 28,321 28,321 -
Inventories - 1,938,805 1,938,805 3,888
Prepaid expenses - 32,225 32,225 27,694
Investment in joint venture - 75,827 75,827 -
Other investments - 11,957 11,957 -
Restricted assets - 3,308,708 3,308,708 -
Land held for resale 710,252 - 710,252 -
Capital assets:
Land 1,900,216 830,777 2,730,993 52,776
Buildings 8,173,292 13,339,031 21,512,323 5,840,236
Improvements other than buildings 30,059,432 62,911,885 92,971,317 -
Machinery and equipment 8,959,557 31,293,798 40,253,355 473,962
Less accumulated depreciation (19,219,139) (66,802,002) (86,021,141) (3,222,072)
Leased equipment 424,755 114,417 539,172 -
Less accumulated amortization (239,662) (11,442) (251,104) -
Construction work in progress 677,765 - 677,765 -
Total assets 48,017,032 53,655,008 101,672,040 3,961,795
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,466,621 972,742 2,439,363 67,836
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 93,399 1,815,344 1,908,743 41,788
Accrued payroll payable 210,310 238,174 448,484 21,401
Accrued interest payable 99,869 46,376 146,245 -
Temporary notes payable 7,151,771 548,229 7,700,000 -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 1,540,590 1,284,276 2,824,866 1,025
Due in more than one year 16,295,676 8,754,108 25,049,784 335,097
Total liabilities 25,391,615 12,686,507 38,078,122 399,311
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred inflows for property taxes receivable 3,773,283 - 3,773,283 -
Deferred inflows for loan receivable 176,000 - 176,000 86,718
Deferred inflows on refundings 53,978 46,801 100,779 -
Deferred inflows related to pensions 375,257 248,891 624,148 25,781
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,378,518 295,692 4,674,210 112,499
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 20,175,047 36,999,468 57,174,515 3,144,902
Restricted for:
Debt service 909,581 - 909,581 -
Capital improvements 861,375 3,308,708 4,170,083 -
General government 101,910 - 101,910 -
Public safety 562,503 - 562,503 -
Public works 437,718 - 437,718 -
Health and welfare 245,523 - 245,523 63,185
Environment protection 39,720 - 39,720 -
Culture and recreation 97,261 - 97,261 -
Economic development 781,839 - 781,839 -
Unrestricted (4,498,957) 1,337,375 (3,161,582) 309,734
Total net position $ 19,713,520 $ 41,645,551 $ 61,359,071 $ 3,517,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements -22-
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Statement of Activities
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Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges Grants Grants Business
for and and Governmental Type Cornponent
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Govemmental Activities:
General govemment $ 1,313,256 §$ 643513 3 - 3 -3 (669,743) $ - 3 (669,743) $ -
Public safety 6,590,362 1,060,172 9,777 9,413 (5,511,000) - (5.511,000) -
Public works/stormwater 1,426,464 184,720 699,872 916,529 374,657 - 374657 -
Cemetery 155,216 77,565 500 - (77.151) - (77,151) -
Culture and recreation 2,352,435 647,920 25,606 30,243 (1,648,666) - (1,648,666) -
Health and weifare 935,641 451,329 - 647,191 162,879 - 162,879 -
Economic development 461,928 . . - (461,928) - (461,928) -
Interest on long-term debt 303,648 - - - (303,648) - (303,648) -
Total Governmental Activities $ 13,538,950 $ 3,065,219 $ 735755 $ 1,603,376 (8,134,600) - (8,134,600) -
Business-Type Activities:
Electric Utility $ 25798434 § 27,691,161 $ - 3 - - 1,892,727 727 -
Gas Utility 3,469,446 3,325,465 - - - (143,981) (125,981) -
Water Utility 2,434,505 2,507,101 - - - 72,596 72,596 -
Wastewater Utility 2,018,355 1,869,697 . . - (148,658) (148,658) .
Refuse 1,313,917 1,419,973 - - . 106,056 106,056 -
Quail Ridge Golf Course 678,223 318,089 - - - (360,134) (360,134) -
Total Business-Type Activities $ 35,712,880 $ 37,131486 $ - 8 - - 1.41 1,418,606 -
Component Units:
Winfield Public Library $ 606,257 § 29,138 § 74,564 $ - - . - {502,555)
Winfield Housing Authority 327,979 138,300 71,850 56,057 - - - (61,772)
Total Component Units $ 934236 § 167,438 § 146,414 § 56,057 - - - (564,327)
General Revenues and Transfers:
General Revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes 3,557,846 - 3,557,846 -
Debt service 642,315 - 642,315 -
Sales taxes 2,610,928 - 2,610,928 -
Franchise fees 154,830 - 154,830 -
Transient guest taxes 92,363 - 92,363 -
Alcohol beverage taxes 75574 - 75,574 -
Payment from City of Winfield - - - 538,895
Investment eamings 36,798 51,035 87,833 2,390
Transfers in (out) 2,483,578 (2,483,578) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 9,654,232 (2,432,543) 7,221,689 (23,042
Change in net position 1,519,632 (1,013,937) 505,695 (23,042
Net position at beginning of year:
As previously reported 19,649,753 42,659,488 62,309,241 3,540,863
Restatement for capital assets (see note 20) (1,455,865) - (1,455,865) -
As restated 18,193,888 42,659,488 60,853,376 3,540,863
Net position at end of year $ 19,713,520 § 41,645551 $ 61,359,071 § 3,517,821

N
‘;” The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2017
Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported

in the funds (capital assets net of accumulated depreciation):

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Other assets not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds:

Special assessments receivable
Long-term contractual receivables from
other governmental agencies

Certain items, which result in a consumption of net
position applicable to a future reporting period, are
recognized as deferred outflows of resources in
government-wide financial statements:

Deferred outflows related to pensions

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds:
Accrued interest payable on general obligation bonds
Compensated absences payable
Capital lease obligations payable
General obligation bonds payable
Unamortized premium on sale of general obligation bonds
Interlocal agreement payable
I Jension liability payable
Net OPEB liability payable

Certain items, which result in an acquisition of net
position applicable to a future reporting period, are
recognized as deferred inflows of resources in
government-wide financial statements:

Deferred inflows related to bond refundings
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of
certain activities to individual funds. The accum ted

equity for the governmental fund types is reported
on the statement of net position as internal balances

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$ 50,195,020

(19,458,801)

99,869
262,462
358,663

9,650,000

€

452,636
i7,500
2,374

202,630

$ 2,457,854

30,736,219

1,606,631

1,099,873

1,466,621

(17,936,134)

(53,978)
(375,257)

711,691

@ 40 7472 EIN
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Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Snecial assessment taxes
f shise taxes
titergovernmentat
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Cemetery

Capital improvements

Debt service

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning year

Fund balances, end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Capital Other Toftal
Debt Capital Projects Governmental  Governmental
General Ser " improvements  14th Ave Bridge Funds Funds

$ 2,861,477 $ 642315 § -3 - % 696,368 $ 4,200,160
2,610,927 - - - - 2,610,927
- 224,114 - - - 224,114

154,831 - - - - 154,831
476,521 - - - 1,575,867 2,052,388
58,504 - - - - 58,504
1,752,857 - - - 162,018 1,914,875
108,868 - - - - 108,868
116,089 4,519 4,882 - 49,510 175,000
44,030 283,892 - - 277,721 605,643
8,184,104 1,154,840 4,882 - 2,761,484 10
738,578 9,504 - - 247,947 996,029
5,518,358 - - - 805,150 6,323,508
- - - 180,173 3,374,583 3,554,756
1,626,926 - - - 631,573 2,158,499
25,023 - - - 910,619 935,642
336,833 - - - 125,095 461,928
174,058 - - - 2,055 176,113

- - 85,592 - - 85,592

~~ 00 220" """ - 35942  ~oThet
8,351,776 2,218,087 " 592 17 ~,132,°" nmmmrg2
(167,672) _ (1,063,247) (80,710) (180,173) (3,371,480) (4,863,282)
2,328,369 1,211,386 1,154,374 - 1,212,634 5,906,763
(2,134,612) - (646,251) - (64,929) (2,845,792)
193,757 1,211,386 508,123 - 1,147,705 3,060,971
26,085 148,139 427,413 (180,173) (2,223,775) (1,802,311)
957,608 761" 13~ (61,164) 2,168,317 4,260 “=F

$ 983693 $ 909,581 § 861,375 $ (241,337) $ (55,458) $ 2,457,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

December 31, 2017
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlays
Depreciation
Excess capital outlays over depreciation

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources for governmental fund but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position for:
Capital lease obligations payable
Interlocal payable

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding debt, whereas in
governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due.

In the statement of activities, the gain or loss from the disposition of capital assets is
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, only cash proceeds from the
sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from
the change in fund balance by the cost of the assets sold.

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmen  unds,
but the repayment reduces fong-term liabilities in the statement of net assets:
General obligation bond payments
Capital lease obligation payments
Interlocal agreement payments
Total payments on long-term liabilities

In the statement of activities the deferred refunding costs increases deferred
outflows of resources but does not provide current resources to the governmental
funds. Amortization of the deferred refunding costs is reflected in the statement of
activities but is not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Amortization of deferred refunding costs

Special assessments are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period. However, they are recognized as revenue in the statement of activities as soon
as the related improvements is completed and the special assessments are levied.

in the statement of activities that do not provide cu t
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental
fund for long-term receivables

Pension contributions is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the net
pension fiability in the statement of net position. Additionally, the effect of changes in
deferred outflows and inflows for pensions are only recorded in the statement of activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds.
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(OPEB) liability change
Compensated absences payable
Amortization of premium on issuance of general obligation bonds

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of certain activities to the individual funds.

Net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported within governmental activities.

Prior period adjustment due to capital asset restatement

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$(1,802,311)

$ 3,050,658

(1,168,883)
1,881,775

(385,052)
(167,500)

14,780

(76,741)

1,221,808

62,847

32,000
1,316,655

26,551

(224,689)

647,191

(128,395)

292,040

(21,243)
(9,271)
36,458

119,384

(1,455,865)

§ ey
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:

Taxes

Property

Sales

Franchise
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Transfers in

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
General government
Administrative/other
Cemetery maintenance
Public safety:
Police Department
Fire Department
EMS Department
Municipal Court
Parking
Cuiture and recreation:
City Lake
rk maintenance
| enSq e
Aquatic facility
Economic Development:
Community development
Miscellaneous
Transfers out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances
Unencumbered cash, beginning of year

Unencumbered cash, end of year

TI icc anying notes are an integral part of the financial stater

.Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
$ 2919767 $ 2,919,767 $ 2,861,477 $ (58,290)
2,780,000 2,780,000 2,629,404 (150,596)
168,000 168,000 157,342 (10,658)
411,200 411,200 476,521 65,321
867,700 867,700 1,165,687 297,987
592,525 592,525 681,587 89,062
105,500 105,500 108,868 3,368
112,000 112,000 116,089 4,089
97,726 97,726 39,243 (58,483)
__ P nee4En 3,056,450 2,328,369 (728,081)
_*4140,868 11,110,868 10,564,587 (546,281)
794,145 794,145 808,232 14,087
193,865 193,865 174,058 (19,807)
2,750,340 2,750,340 2,523,618 (226,722)
2,875,806 2,875,806 2,714,295 (161,511)
260,420 260,420 265,982 5,562
76,085 76,085 74,876 (1,209)
29,734 29,734 17,587 (12,147)
322,465 322,465 274,417 (4R N4RY
829,618 829,618 803,082
246,154 1 222,332
259,364 259,364 243,194 (16,170)
352,672 352,672 329,333 (23,339)
78,805 78,805 - (78,805)
2,041,°"= 2,041,395 2,021 °+7 __"n783)
_ 11141 868 11,110 aga 10,472,618 (638,250)
- - 91,969 91,969
- - 315,623 _  MRa7’3
$ - $ - ¥ 407,692 $ 407,592
ts. -28 -
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Current Assets:

Cash and investments

Trade accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid insurance

Restricted assets:

Cash and investments restricted for:

Electric Utility improvements
Wastewater Utility improvements

Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Leased equipment
Less accumulated amortization

Property, plant and equipment, net
Other Assets:
Advances to other funds
Investment in joint venture
Other investments
Total other assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financ

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Net Pnsition - Proprietary Funds

Decet i 31,2017
Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Electric Gas Water Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Utility Utility Utility Funds Funds Funds
$ 1687540 $ 33,966 $ 6,132 § 614,477 $ 737,430 3,079,545 § 995,578
2,160,559 498,109 240,021 157,536 146,898 3,203,123 36,411
1,316,959 334,011 125,281 22974 25,871 1,825,096 113,709
- - - - - - 32,225
3,156,208 - - - - 3,156,208 -
- - - 152,500 - 152,500 -
8,321,266 866,086 371,434 947,487 910,199 11,416,472 1,177,923
382,366 6,303 8,801 23,355 403,452 824,277 6,500
3,533,772 - 1,209,573 5,885,307 574,793 11,203,445 2,135,586
30,041,458 6,575,925 11,213,740 12,419,471 2,551,268 62,801,862 110,023
18,695,233 826,841 5,401,081 2,419,059 2,049,055 29,391,269 1,902,529
(34,815,359) (3,.153,100) (8,795,199) (13,095,224) (4.228,438) (64,087,320) (2,714,682)
- - - 77,245 37,172 114,417 -
- - - (7,725) (3.717) (11,442) -
17,837,470 4,255,969 ~,037,996 7,721,488 1,383,585 40,236,508 1,439,956
55,909 6,645 2,970 4,912 7,620 78,056 -
- - - - 75,827 75,827 -
11,957 - - - - 11,957 -
67,866 6,645 2,970 4,912 83,447 165,840 -
26,226,602 5,128,700 9412400 _  ~ 373,887 2,377,231 51,818,820 2,617,879
270,481 81,570 104,770 88,956 79,796 625,573 347,169
26,497,083 5,210,270 9,517,170 8,762,843 2,457,027 52,444,393 2,965,048

ements.
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Current Liabilities:
Salaries and wages payable
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations payable
Temporary notes payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from other funds
Long-term portion of compensated absences payahia
Long-term portion of general obligatio» honds pay e
Long-term portion of capitalized lease  igations
OPEB obligatinn payable
Net pensior  bility payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unamortized premium on general obligation bonds
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

. Position:

Net investment in c: il assets
Restricted for Electnic Utility Improvements
Restricted for Wastewater Utility Improvements
Unrestricted

Totalnet| tion

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Electric Gas Water Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Utility Utility Utility Funds Funds Funds
$ 65,749 14,339 § 27,851 § 20,564 $ 22,437 $ 150,940 $ 87,234
1,347,534 255,899 15,175 14,232 90,829 1,723,669 91,675
83,542 27,304 29,199 22,522 21,192 183,759 88,372
- - 465,000 - - 465,000 -
- - 37,154 9,222 - 46,376 -
- - - 544,500 2,645 547,145 -
- - - 548,229 - 548,229 -
1,496,825 297,542 574,379 1,159,269 137,103 3,665,118 267,281
- - - - - - 70,000
120,205 29,546 9,756 28,617 12,035 200,159 94,862
- - 3,525,000 - - 3,525,000 -
- - - 63,110 30,365 93,475 -
118,354 35,070 46,461 38,263 36,837 274,985 160,048
1,225,017 369,434 474,506 402,884 361,400 2,833,241 1,572,338
1,463,576 434 ~7" 4,055,723 532,874 440,637 6,926,860 1,897,248
2,960,401 731,592 4,630,102 1,692,143 577,740 10,591,978 2,164,529
- - 46,801 - - 46,801 -
69,207 20,871 26,807 22,761 20,417 160,063 88,828
69,207 20,871 73,608 22,761 20,417 206,864 88,828
17,837,470 4,255,969 5,010,842 7,104,656 1,350,575 35,559,512 1,439,956
3,156,208 - - - - 3,156,208 -
- - - 152,500 - 152,500 -
2,473,797 201,838 (197,382) (209.217) 508,295 2,777,331 (728,265)
$ 23467475 4,457,807 4813460 $ 7047939 $ 1858870 § 41645551 § 711,691

ements.
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Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Services and supplies
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain(loss) on disposal of assets
Gain on joint venture
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

it of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Governmental

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal

Electric Gas Water Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Service

Utility Utility Utility Utility Funds Funds Funds

$ 27,591,604 $ 3,345,207 % 2,483,295 $ 1,847471 $ 1,690,742 $ 36,958,319 $ 5,942,468
104,966 - 16,023 7,154 47,299 175,442 79,380
27,696,570 3,345,207 2,499,318 1,854,625 1,738,041 37,133,761 6,021,848
24.466,017.00 3,352,607 1,863,375 1,321,342 1,828,259 32,831,600 5,822,094
1,332,417 116,839 460,357 697,013 163,881 2,770,507 112,094
25,798,434 3,469,446 2,323,732 2,018,355 1,992,140 35,602,107 5,934,188
1,898,136 (124,239) 175,586 (163,730) (254,099) 1,531,654 87,660
37,291 6,004 827 923 5,990 51,035 5,548
- - (110,773) - - (110,773) -
9,589 (19,742) 7,783 15,072 - 12,702 357
- - - - 21 21 -
46,880 (13,738) (102,163) 15,995 6,011 (47,015) 5,905
1,945,016 (137,977) 73,423 (147,735) (248,088) 1,484,639 93,565
563,000 - 145,000 100,000 238,500 1,046,500 -
(2,672,737) (421,146) (198,509) (130,000) (107,686) (3,530,078) (17,500)
(164,721) (559,123) 19,914 (177,735) (117,274) (998,939) 76,065
23,632,196 5,016,930 4,793,546 7,225,674 1,976,144 42,644,490 635,626
$ 23467475 § 4,457,807 $ 4,813,460 $ 7,047,939 $ 1,858,870 $ 41645551 § 711,691

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund charges
Other cash receipts
Cash payments for materials and services
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital lease obligation
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Proceeds from temporary note
Principal paid on capital lease obligations
Principal paid on general obligation bonds
Interest paid on debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Interest expensed

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents included
in restricted cash and investments

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Totat Internal
Electric Gas Water Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Utility Utility Utility Funds Funds Funds

$ 27627015 $ 3,421,853 §$ 2483516 $1,914,604 §$ 1680812 $ 37,127,800 §

5,937,784

104,966 - 16,023 7,156 47,320 175,465 79,737
(21,304,531)  (1,769,369)  (583,846)  (515,995)  (793,921) (24,967,662)  (3,125,618)
(2,066,117)  (600,024)  (760,377)  (616,198)  (734,600)  (4,777,316)  (2,713,397)
(1,362,678) _ (731,244) __ (456,518) _ (186,333) _ (293,667) _ (3,030,440) -
2,998,655 321,216 698,798 603,234 (94,056) 4,527,847 178,506

. . - 77,245 37,172 114,417 -
19,599 - 7,783 15,072 . 42,454 -
- - - 548,229 - 548,229 -
. . - (538,241)  (37,381) (573,622) -
- - (513,192) - - (513,192) -
- - (5,166) 2,299 - (2,867) -

(700,994) (94,058) (53,828) _ (144,923) _ (58,937) _ (1,052.740) (153,373)
(681,395) (94,058) _ (564,403) _ (38,319) _ (59.146) _ (1,437,321) (153,373)

563,000 - 145,000 100,000 238,500 1,046,500 -
(2,672,737) _ (421,146) _ (198,509) _ (130,000) _ (107,686) __(3,530,078) (17,500)
(2,109,737) __ (421,148) (53,509) _ (30,000) _ 130,814 _ (2,.483,578) (17,500)

37,291 6,004 827 923 5,990 51,035 5,548

- - (110,773) - - (110,773) -

244,814 (187,984) (29,060) 53 838 (16,398) 547,210 13,181

4,598,934 221,950 35192 2 139 _ 753,828 5,841,043 982,397
$ 4843748 $ 33966 $ 6,132 $ 766,977 $ 737,430 $ 6,388253 $ 995578
$ 1687540 $ 33966 $ 6,132 $ 614477 § 737,430 $ 3079545 $ 995578

3,156,208 - - 152500 - 3,308,708 -
$ 4843748 $ 33966 $ 6132 $ 766977 $ 737" § 6388253 $ 995578
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Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
Provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions
(Increase) decrease in salaries and wages payable
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows related to |
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences pa
(Increase) decrease in OPEB liability payable
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability payable

s

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Governmental

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal

Electric Gas Water Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Service

Utility Utility Utility Utility Funds Funds Funds
$ 1898136 $ (124,239) § 175586 §$ (163,730) $ (254,099) $ 1531654 §$ 87,660
1,332,417 116,839 460,357 697,013 163,881 2,770,507 112,094
35,411 76,646 221 67,135 10,962 190,375 (6,165)
(11,479) 126,990 2,319 4,700 507 123,037 (1,487)
- - - - - - 1,838
28,247 4,161 (7,058) 13,815 10,454 49,619 10,030
(14,568) (5,448) 4,528 (2,447) 4,059 (13,876) 8,992
(256,305) 118,512 (2,120) (2,969) (5,847) (148,729) (48,284)
2,115 1,617 4,862 (327) 139 8,406 3,857
41,977 2,383 (2,391) 29,294 1,216 72,479 (16,633)
5,195 3,820 9,125 806 2,286 21,232 14,881
(62,491) (65) 53,369 (40,056) (27,614) (76,857) (58,277)
$ 2998655 $ 321216 $ 698798 $ 603234 $ (94.056) $ 4,527.847 §$ 108,506




CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Agency Funds
December 31, 2017

Agency
Funds
Assets:
( hincluding investments $ 60,664
Other receivables 90,978
rtal assets 1R1 RAY
ilities

Accounts payable 151,642
Net position $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. -3



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The City of Winfield, Kansas (the City) was founded in 1869. Located in the northern half of Cowley
County, the City has a population of over 12,000 living within an area of 12 square miles. The City
operates under a charter adopted February 2, 1873, as a Commission/Manager form of government. The
City provides a full range of municipal utility services to its citizens including electric, gas, water,
wastewater and sanitation services. Other municipal services include police and fire protection,

1bulance services, construction and maintenance of streets, drainage facilities and other infrastructure,
recreation and cultural activities, a municipal golf course, community and industrial development,
planning and zoning, building inspection, cemetery operations and maintenance, general administration
and internal support services.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City of
Winfield, Kansas (primary government) and its component units, entities for which the City is considered
to be financially accountable. A primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of an organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2)
there is potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. The component units discussed in the following paragraphs are
included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial
relationship with the City.

Discretely presented component units
Winfield Public Library

The Winfield Public Library operates the public library in the City. The Winfield Public ibrary is
accounted for using the same principles as the governmental fund types of the City. The City
Commission appoints all Library Board members and the Library Board may not purchase or lease a site
or erect a building for use of the library without the approval of the City Commission. The Library Board
taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the City and are included as part of the City's total tax levy.
These taxes are accounted for in the Library special revenue fund of the City. The Library oard also
receives funding through state assistance programs and other sources. The Library Board issues
sepz 2 financial atements and can be obtained by contacting the admir rative offi of t
Winfield Public Library, 605 College, Winfield, Kansas 67156.

Winfield Housing Authority

The Winfield Housing Authority (Housing Authority) operates the City's housing projects. The Winfield
Housing Authority is accounted for using the same principles as the business-type funds of the City. The
City created the Winfield Housing Authority as its agent in 1978 under the provisions of K.S.A. 17-2340.
The City Commission appoints all board members and has the at 'y to impose its will on the Winfield
Housing Authority. Although the City does not have the authority to approve or modify the iusing
Authority's operational and capital budgets, and the Housing Authority has the ability to issue bonded
debt, the City is fiscally responsible for the Housing Authority since it was created as an agent of the
City. The City Commission has delegated to the Housing Authority the power to operate and manage the
low-rent housing projects of the City. The Housing Authority is on a June 30th fiscal year end and data
included in these financial statements are for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The Winfielc ousing
Authority issues separate financial statements and to obtain by contacting the administrative offices of
the Winfield Housing Authority, 1417 Pine Terrace, Winfield, Kansas 67156.
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Joint ventures

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrange nt (or
interiocal agreement) and is owned, operated or governed by two or more participants as a separate and
specific activity subject to joint control. The participants retain (1) an on-going financial interest or, (b) an
on-going financial responsibility. The City participates in the following joint ventures:

Strother Field Airport and Industrial Park

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to create Strother
Field Airport and Industrial Park (Strother Field). Three commissioners from both cities comprise the
Strother Field governing body. The two cities jointly own Strother Field. The cities provide no financial
support to Strother Field. Separate audited financial statements are available from Strother Field Airport
and Industrial Park, P.O. Box 47, Winfield, Kansas 67156.

Cowley County Humane Society Interlocal Agreement

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to jointly operate
and fund the animal shelter. The purpose of this agreement is to provide for the continuity for the use of
the Cowley County Human Society to temporarily house, care for and disperse unwanted or stray
animals. Each City and the Society shall continue to have equal one-third ownership interest in the
shelter facility. Records and reporting are maintained by the Humane Society, and both cities contribute
annually to the operations of the shelter and have an ongoing financial interest in the organization.
Unaudited financial statements are available from the Cowley County Humane Society, 7468 222nd
Road, Winfield, Kansas 67156.

Arkansas City/Winfield Recycling Center

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to jointly
purchase and operate a recycling center. Additionally, the City of Winfield offers single stream recycling
to Winfield residents. Records are maintained by the City of Winfield and both cities share equally in the
costs and recycling revenues. No separate financial statements are prepared for this joint venture.
Further financial information can be obtained from the City of Winfield, 200 E. 9th Avenue, Winfield,
Kansas 67516. A summary of 2017 revenues and expenses for the recycling center are as follows:

Recycling revenues $8,172

Recycling expense 55,018

Depreciation Expense 9,146
Relate(
Arn | organization is an organization of which a primary go nment is not financially acc  tat
(be » it does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burd  relationship) even though the

primary government appoints a voting majority of that organization's governing board.
William Newton Memorial Hospital

The City Commission is responsible for appointing the Board members of the William Newton Memorial
Hospital (Hospital), but the City's accountability for the Hospital does not extend beyond making
appointments.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principals
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies
are described here-in.

-36 -






SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC _ 5 (CONT.)
f accounting (coi )

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Property taxes and special assessments are not available as explained in Note 1, topic Property
Taxes and Other Receivable, and result in unavailable revenue. All other revenue items are considered
measurable and available only when cash is recei | by the City.

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus, but utilizes the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resour . of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the resources accumulated and
payments made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Capital Improvements Fund - e Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for many of the major
capital improvements of the City (other than those financed in proprietary funds) and is financed primarily
through on-half of the local sales tax revenues and other City transfers.

14th Avenue Bridge - This Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the 14th Avenue bridge
improver its with KDOT providing the funding for a portion of the project with the balance to be
financed through the issuance of general obligation bonds.

Additionally, the City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Electric Utility Fund - The Electric Utility Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of
the City's electric generation and distribution system. The City purchases electricity and maintains a 65
KW generation capacity. Electric service is provided to more than 7,400 meters, both within the City and
in surrounding areas, and sold wholesale to neighboring cities.

is Utility Fund - The Gas Utility Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's gas
distribution system. The City purchases natural gas and provides service to approximately 5,200 meters.

Water Utility Fund - The Water Utility Fund is used tc ¢ 1t for the operation and maintenance of the
City's water tr ment plant and the water distribution system. The Winfield City Lake provides ad: 1ate
quality water supply to W eld citizens providing water to approximately 5,200 meters. The City al
provides access to water for five rural water districts and one neighboring city.

Wastewater Utility Fund - The Wastewater Utility Fund is used to account for the operation a
maintenance of the City's wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment plant. T  City
collects and treats effluent of City residents providing service through the City to approximately 5,000
customers.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other
than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Project Funds - The Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources
t are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisi 1 or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets other than those financed by proprietary funds.
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Measurement focus and basis of accounting (c-—**

Permanent Funds - Permanent Funds are used to report an endowment restricted to the perpetual care
of the municipal cemeteries.

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost
reimbursement basis and to account for the City's self-insurance activities.

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the City in a custodial capacity
for remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments. The
agency funds maintained by the City include the Payroll Clearing Fund to account for monies held on
behalf of City employee's payroll for related payroll taxes, retirement contributions, insurance and other
authorized withholdings by City employees; the Sales Tax Fund to collect and pass through sales taxes;
the Flex Medical Fund to collect and pass through flexible benefit contributions; and the Fire Insurance
Proceeds Fund to collect and pass through fire insurance recoveries.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated fro the government-wide financial
statements. _..ceptions to this general rule are payments for franchise fees and other charges be en
the City's enterprise funds and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reports for the various functions concerned.

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/due to other funds and advanced to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in the fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide fin. :ial statements. Balances between funds included
in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included in the governmental
activities column. Similarly, balances between funds included in business-type activities are eliminated
so that only the net amount is included in the business-type activities column. The City does not have a
formal policy on removing internal activity on the government-wide financial statements.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources hetween funds. In fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balan between the funds included in business-type activities are elimini | so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reports as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. In addition, general revenues included all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperation items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. Principal operating revenues of the
proprietary fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for Enterprise and
Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these criteria are reported as nonoperation
revenues and expenses.
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Measurer - —* “ycus and basis of accounting (Cont.)

Property taxes are not susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes are collected and held by the State at year-
end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. In addition, gaming facility revenues collected and
held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. Recognized state shared
taxes represent payments received during the current fiscal period. State statutes specify distribution
dates for such shared taxes and consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, amounts collected and
held by the State on behalf of the City at year-end are not due and receivable until the ensuing y:

Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. Unrestricted aid is reported as revenue in the
fiscal year the entitlement is received.

Licenses, fees, fines, forfeitures and other revenue are generally not susceptible to accrual and are
recorded when received as cash.

Cash and pooled investments

Cash and investments of the individual funds are combined to form a pool that is managed by the
Director of Finance. Each fund's equity in the pool is included in "deposits and investments" in the
financial statements. Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. Investments of the pooled accounts
consist of certificates of deposit and money market investments backed by U.S. government securities.
Investments are carried at fair value. Deposits are reported at their cost, which approximates fair value.
Interest income is allocated based on management discretion and is credited to the investing fund based
on their average monthly balances.

Cash flows stat~—~—~-t

For purposes of the cash flows statement, the City considers deposits of highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Progeﬂy"”” ot e

In accordance with governing state statues, property taxes levied during the current year are a revenue
source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Taxes are assessed on a calendar year
basis and are levied and become a lien on the property on November 1 of each year. The County
Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within the County. Property owners have the
option of paying one-half or the full amount of other taxes levied on or before December 20th during the
year levied, with the balance to be paid on or before May 10th of the ensuing year. State s  utes prohibit
t County Treasurer from distributing taxes collected in the levied prior to January 1 of the ensuing
year. Consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, the 1 i levied during the current year are not
due and receivable until the ensuing year. At December 31 such taxes are a lien on the property and are
recorded as taxes receivable, net of anticipated delinquencies, with a corresponding amount recorded as
unearned revenue on the balance sheets of the appropriate funds. It is not practical to apportion
delinquent taxes held by the County Treasurer at the end of the year and, further, the amounts thereof,
are not material in relationship to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Recognized State-shared taxes represent payments received during the current fiscal period. State
statutes specify distribution dates for such shared taxes. For revenue recognition purposes, amounts
collected and held by the State on behalf of the City at year-end are not due and receivable until the
ensuing year.

Federal and state grant aid is reported as revenue when the related reimbursable expenditures are
incurred. Unrestricted aid is reported as revenue in the fiscal year the entitlement is received.
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Capital assets (Cont.)

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset _— Life/Years

Buildings and improvements 40-50
Equipment 5-15
Vehicles 8

Meters 20-30
Asphalt and concrete streets 40-50
Sidewalk and curbs and gutters 40-50
Park/recreational infrastructure 20-30
Electric generation plans 30-35
Transformers 15-20
Electric poles 25

Conductors/related equipment 35

Gas lines/infrastructure 40-75
Water treatment plant 30-50
Water lines/infrastructure 30-65
Sewer lines/infrastructure 50-75
Lift stations 25

Amortization of capital assets acquired under lease purchase agreements is included in depreciation
expense. Capital assets not being depreciated include land and construction work in process.

Compensated absences

The City provides compensated absence benefits for the following:
Vacation

All permanent full-time employees of the City are eligible for vacation benefits. Employees with less than

ten years employment service with the City have vacation days accumulated at the rate of one day for

each month of employment, with a maximum of eighteen days. If employed ten years or more, the rate is

one and one-half days per month, with a maximum accumulation of twenty-four days. All vacation pay is
cert Iwl gincw lint 3o nn at-wic id proprietary fi 1 atemer

Sickl e

Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of one day per month, regardless of the length of employment, with
the accumulated carryover not to exceed ninety days. Accumulated sick leave is not paid to employees
separating from service prior to retirement. No liability is reported in the financial statements for accrued
sick leave, unless an employee is entitled to the payout due to retirement.

Sick leave reserve

Employees who have accrued the maximum ninety days of sick leave are eligible to accrue sick leave in
a reserve account. Reserve sick leave is credited for twenty-five percent of each eight hours sick leave
that would have been accrued had the ninety days maximum accrual not been reached. There is no
maximum as to the number of reserve sick leave hours that may be accumulated and sick leave reserve
hours accumulated by employees eligible for retirement are reflected as accrued liabilities in the financial
statements.
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Compensated absences (Cont.)

Sick leave bonus

Any permanent full-time employee who has reached the maximum ninety days sick leave accrual is
eligible for the annual sick leave bonus program. For each pay period that an employee begins and ends
with ninety days maximum accrued sick leave they accrue one hour's pay at their regular rate of pay.
This bonus is paid out to those employees annually.

Accrued liabilities and long-term debt

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. In general,
governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and
in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgements, compensated absences, general obligation bonds and capital lease obligations that will be
paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent
that they are due for payment during the current year.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Deferred amounts on bond refunding's and bond premiums and discounts are being amortized on a
straight-line method over the life of the related bonds in the enterprise funds and for the government-
wide financial statements. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Long-term liabilities for certain general obligation bonds payable and capital lease obligations payable
are recorded as liabilities in the enterprise funds. Principal payments are deducted from the liability as
made.

Pension Plans

Substantially all full-time employees, except for police, fire and emergency med services employ:

are members of the State of Kansas Public Employee's Retirement System, which is a cost sharing multi-
employer statewide-defined benefit pension plan. Police, fire and emergency medical services
employees are members of the State of Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System, which is also
a cost sharing multi-employer statewide pension plan. The City's policy is to fund all pension costs
accrued; such costs to be funded are determined annually by the system's actuary.

The City of Winfield participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan administered by the
Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS). For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kansas Public Employees
Retirement System (KPERS) and additions to/deductions from KPERS' fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by KPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at actuarial value.
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. The separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expenselexpenditure) until then. The City reports amounts related
pensions on the government-wide statement of net position as a deferred outflow of resources. See Note
9 for more information on the deferred outflows for pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three types of items that qualify for
reporting in this category. (1) The City reports amounts related to pensions on the government-wide
statement of net position as a deferred inflow of resources. See Note 9 for more information on the
deferred inflows for pensions. (2) Under a modified accrual basis of accounting, the governmental funds
and business-type activities funds report unavailable revenues from two sources as deferred inflows of
resources: property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available and earned. (3) The deferred
change on refunding is reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position.
A deferred change on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt.

Net Position
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified into three components:

« Net investment in capital assets - consisting of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, leases, or
other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

+ Restricted net position - consisting of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

« Unrestricted net position - all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restric " or "net
initment in capital assets.”

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular pi >se from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It
is the City's policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net
position is applied.

Fund Balance

Governmental fund balance classifications are based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the funds can be expended. In the
governmental funds financial statements, fund balance is classified into potentially five components:
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Fund Balance (cont.)

«  Nonspendable fund balances - includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion inciudes items
that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, and long-
term notes receivables.

«  Restricted fund balances - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation.
Restrictions may effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

« Committed fund balances - includes amounts that can be used only for a specific purpose
determined by a formal action of the City Commission. The City Commission is the highest level of
decision-making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded
only through ordinances approved through a majority vote by a quorum of the Commission.

- Assigned fund balances - the assigned portion of fund balance is comprised of amounts intended to
be used by the City for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is
expressed by (1) the City Commission or (2) a body or official to whom the City Commission has
delegated the authority to. The City Commission has delegated authority to the City Manager or
Department Heads to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. The portion of fund balance
that is appropriated by the City Commission for the next year's budget that is not already restricted
or committed is considered assigned. Encumbrances, which can be approved by designated senior
staff, are included in the assigned fund balance.

« Unassigned fund balances - is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
amounts not contained in other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any
purpose. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.
In other governmental funds, it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance
amount. However, in governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes,
it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are

( lto be plied. It the City >olicy to col | fund balan to!l e n deple |
| 1g any of the components of un tricted fun« 2. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purp mitted fund be ice is def M,

fo  red by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Conct = 3 ed” -

v

The City routinely grants credit to utility customers, in accordance with applicable utility rate ordinances,
all of which are located within the environs of the City.

[ o TN P -1t

The City's insurance coverage consists of both self-insurance and policies maintained with various
carriers. The City uses four internal service funds to address four risk areas, which include general risk
management, worker's compensation, health insurance and short-term disability insurance. The City
records liabilities for known claims and estimated liabilities for claims incurred, but not reported at year-
end. These claims are reflected under accounts payable in the internal service funds.
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Risk management (cont.)

Risk management reserve

The City established the Risk Management Reserve Fund in 1987 in accordance with provisions of
K.S.A. 12-2615. This fund provides for payment of insurance premiums, deductibles, excess liability
losses, uninsured losses and insurable losses not otherwise covered. Insurance deductibles vary by type
of property insurance coverage. Funding, when determined necessary, for the Risk Management
Reserve Fund, is provided by annual contributions provided by an insurance consultant to the City. The
City purchases commercial insurance coverage for all substantial areas of risk, including property loss,
auto liability, boiler and machinery, and general and public official's liability. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The following is a summary of changes in of liability activity under the plan for the last three years:

Current Year

Claims and
Beginning of Changes in Claim End of Year
Year Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2015 $ -8 14,555 § 14,555 § -
2016 - 23,122 23,122 -
2017 - 22,467 22,467 -

During 2017, the City charged $0 of unfunded Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System
contributions to the Risk Management Reserve Fund. This liability was the result of converting certain
emergency medical service personnel from the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System to the
Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System. At December 31, 2017, Risk Management Reserve
Fund cash and short-term investments of $349,829 were held for the purpose of funding the City's future
claims liabilities.

Worker's Compensation Reserve

Prior to 2011, the City maintained a partially self-funded worker's compensation program to cover
substantiallv all full-time and part-time employees. In 2011, the Citv ioined the Kansas Fastern Reaion
Ins € ..ust(l_...T),a “~fun  lins ance risk and ¢ . for 2011 and forw: i

by KERIT. KERIT is comprised of eighteen government entities within the State of Kansas.
organized under the pooling laws of the State of Kansas, is a risk sharing pool which self-insures, up to
certain limits, and reinsures additional excess amounts up to certain limits, workers' compensation 1d
other related expenses. The City pays annual premiums to KERIT based on historical experience and
legal requirements mandated by the State of Kansas and participates in management decisions as a
trustee. Members of the trust may be assessed additional premiums to cover losses up to the attz  ed
point of excess coverage, and for losses in excess of the aggregate loss limit of $5,000,000per year. The
City has not been involved in any settlements where the amounts exceeded coverage in the past three
years.
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Risk management (cont.}

Health Insurance Reserve

The City created the Health Insurance Reserve Fund in 1993 to accumulate monies to eventually fund a
partially self-insured health insurance program. Resources accumulated may be used to pay excess
losses, health claims, partial payments of health insurance premiums for employees, and other
miscellaneous health insurance related expenses. Annual funding is provided by contributions from other
funds, as determined by management in the budgeting process. Health insurance premiums are paid
through this reserve fund. The employee health insurance program is a fully insured program with health
insurance offered to substantially all full-time employees of the City. At December 31, 2017, the alth
Insurance Reserve Fund had a net position of $189,613 availa : for future health insurance premiums.
The funds are being retained to stabilize projected premium increases and to provide a reserve if 2 City
should choose to self-insure in the future.

Short-term Disability Reserve

The Short-term Disability Reserve Fund was created in 1997 to provide financial assistance to regular
employees following sixty days of continuous disability. The benefit amounts to fifty percent of pre-
disability weekly gross earnings up to a maximum weekly benefit of $650, and is payable to an emplo 2
for a maximum for twenty-six weeks immediately following completion of the sixty-day waiting period. An
employee may receive this benefit for a maximum of fifty-two weeks over hisfher ca - with the City. At
December 31, 2017, the City had a net position in the Short-Term Disability Reserve Fund of $210,880
available for short-term disability benefits to employees.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilites and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

New St-—"ards

The GASB has issued the following statements, which will have an impact on the City's future financial
reporting, although they are not yet required to be implemented by the City:

« GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial  porting for Postemployment Bent Other
than Pensions, issued June 2015, will be effective for the City beginning with its year er 1g
December 31, 2018. This Statement's objective is to improve accounting and financial repc g by
state and local governments for postemployment be ts other than | isions (other
postemployment or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. The scope addresses
accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local
governmental employers.

+ GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, issued November 2016, will be
effective for the City beginning with its year ending December 31, 2019. This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a
legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government
that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital
assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement.
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New Standards (cont.)

« GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, issued January 2017, will be effective for the City
beginning with its year ending December 31, 2019. The objective of this Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported.

+ (GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, issued March 2017, will be effective for the City beginning
with its year ending December 31, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in
accounting and financial reporting by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.

« GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, issued | 1y 2017, will be effective for
the City beginning with its year ending December 31, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for certain debt extinguishments and to
enhance the decision-usefulness of that information.

The City's management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City's
financial statements.

BUDGETARY PRINCIPLES

The City is required by state statute to legally adopt annual operating budgets for the general fund,
special revenue funds (unless exempted by specific statute), debt service fund, enterprise funds and
internal service funds (unless exempted by specific statute). e funds exempted from legally adopted
budget include the Ambulance and Fire Equipment Reserve, Equipment Reserve, Grants and
Contributions, Barr Police Building, Capital Improvements, Risk Management Reserve, Worker's
Compensation Reserve, Health Insurance Reserve and Short-term Disability Reserve Funds. The
statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating
budget:

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1st.

2. Publication in local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the budget on
or before August 5th.

3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least 10 days after publication of notice of heari
4, Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th.

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. This process requires a notice of
public hearing to amend the budget to be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after
publication the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time. During
2017, the governing body amended the following funds:

Original Amended

Cuond Budget Ridnat
Water Preservation $ 40,500 $ 49615
LE Ambulance & Fire Equipment - 1,076
Special Streets & Highway 1,121,329 1,216,431
Bond & Interest 2,187,222 2,230,087
Electric 28,285,990 28,747,678
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BUDGETARY PRINCIPLES (CONT.)

Kansas statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund.
However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the adopted budget of
expenditures of individual funds. Management has the authority to revise line items within a department;
however, changes to total appropria“~-1s at the department level mush be approved by the City

Commission.

All legal annual operating budgets are
the inclusion of accounts payable and
encumbrances of the budgeted gover
other commitments, are reported a
appropriations lapse at the end of the
until such time as the project is comg
revenues until their date of receipt. Al:
as revenues and expenditures in the 1
presented in the budgetary comparisol
financial statements prepared in acco
purposes, fund balances are determine

Controls over spending in funds that a. _
by the use of internal spending limits €

DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT

Kansas Statutes Annotated (K.S.A.
governmental entities in Kansas. The
main or branch bank in the county in v
has been designated as an official d
funds. In addition, K.S.A. 9-1402 re
Federal Depository Insurance Corpor:
further limit interest rate risk.

K.S.A. 12-1675 limits the City's investi
of deposit with allowable financial in
warrants; repurchase agreements; &
investment policies set forth the prime
yield. The standard of care to be used

State statutes place no limit on the ..

investments are adequately secured
inv  ments as of December 31, 2017,

RCB Bank
Citizens Bank
Security Bank

~ A (LN

- 75k - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the
be returned or the City will not be ab.__
party. The City's policy follows applici
collateral (pledge securities) valued
Corporation (FDIC) insurance. State S

epared using the cash basis of accounting, modified further by
» encumbrance method of acct  iting. For budgetary purposes,
ental fund types, representing purchase orders, contracts and
a charge to the current year budget. All unencumbered
2ar, except for capital project funds, which are carried forward
ed or terminated. In addition, revenues are not recognized as
interfund receivables and payable transactions are recognized
pective funds for budgetary purposes. Accordingly, actual data
tatements can differ from the expenditure data presented in the
nce with generally accepted accounting principles. For budget
by deducting accounts payable and encumbrances from cash.

not subject to legal budgets are maintained by other statutes or

" blished by management.

3-1401 establishes the depositories that may be used by
atutes requires banks eligible to hold the City's funds have a
sh the City is located, or in an adjoining county if such institution
ository, and the bank provide an acceptable rate of return on
res the banks to pledge securities for deposits in excess of
n (FDIC) coverage. The City has no other policies that would

nt of idle funds to time deposits, open accounts and certificates
utions; U.S. government securities; temporary notes; no-fund

the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. The City's formal
djectives, in order of priority, as safety of principal, liquidity and
investment officials shall be the "prudent man rule".

nount the Citv may invest in any one issuer as long as the
ler KS.A. 9 102 ad 9-1405. The City's allocation of cash and
as follows:

55%
43%
3%

sk that in the event of bank failure, the City's deposits may not
to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside
e State Statutes and requires deposits to be 100% secured by

market, less the amount of the Federal Deposit Insurance
utes define the allowable pledge securities.
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4.

DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT (CONT.)

At year-end, the carrying amount of the

custodial banks in joint custody in the
securities held by the City's custodial ir

The remaining carrying amount of the
cash on hand of $3,275.

A reconciliation of cash and investme
is as follows:

Cash on hand
( rying amount of deposits - City

Carrying amount of deposits - com

Total

Amounts per statement of net pos
Cash including investments
Restricted cash and investmer
Component unit cash and inve
Component unit restricted casl!
Cash held in fiduciary funds

Total

RECEIVABLES

Utility Receivables

ity's deposits was $16,075,693, with the bank balances of such
accounts being $16,376,281. Of the bank balances, $1,045,229 was covered by federal depository
insurance and the remaining balance of $15,331,052 was covered by collateral held by the City's
ame of the City and its banks. The fair value of those pledged
istment agencies was $19,749,686 at December 31, 2017.

ty's cash and investments at December 31, 2017, consisted of

as reported in the financial statements at December 31, 2017,

A summary of the City's utility receivables at December 31, 2017, is as follows:

Electric Utility

Gas Utility

Water Utility
Wastewater Utility
Refuse

Management Service
Stormwater Drainage
Sales Tax

Totals

The City adjusts its reserves for unce
computation, the provision for uncollec
$3,012 and $339 for the Electric U
Stormwater Drainage Funds, respectiv

$ 3,275

16,075,693

nent unit 721,462
$ 16,800,430

n:

$ 12,709,596

3,308,708

1ents 713,155
nd investments 8,307
60,664

$ 16,800,430

Less
provision for
Total uncollectible Net

) 2,063,275 I 412,538 9 2,150,737_

607,172 109, 3 498,109

283,906 43,885 240,021

198,105 40,729 157,

172,100 27,820 144,280

26,666 - 26,666

16,154 3,384 12,770

72,516 - 72,516

$ 3,939,804 $ 637,419 $§ 3,302,475

ctible accounts based on a eight-year average. Based on this
le accounts was increased by $60,212, $7,704, $5,360, $4,274,
y, Gas Utility, Water Utility, Wastewater Utility, Refuse and
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RECEIVABLES (CONT.)

Year

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Winfield William
Winfield USD Recreation Newton
No. 465 Commission Hospital Total
$ 6,378 § 100,985 $ 228,200 $ 335,563
- 50,985 228,900 279,885
- 50,985 229,500 280,485
- 50,985 - 50,985
- 50,985 - 50,985
- 50,985 - 50,985
- 50,985 - 50,985
3 6,378 $ 406,895 $ 686,600 $ 1,099,873

Southwestern College is a non-profit private liberal arts four-year institution located in Winfield, Kansas.
Winfield USD No. 465 is the local school district; the Winfield Recreation Commission is a component
unit of the local school district; and William Newton Hospital is the local hospital.
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CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Leased equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Leased equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets (net)

Governmental activities capital assets (net)

Business-Type Activities:
Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Leased equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Leased equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets (net)

Business-type activities capital assets (net)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deletions PPA 2017
$ 1,900,213 $ - 3 - % 3 $ 1,900,216

1,620,"°° - nan ’Vé) no= =ae
3,521,2v1 - - (943,220) 3,341,201
8,642,917 111,140 - (580,765) 8,173,292
27,443,513 2,494 862 86,380 207,437 30,059,432
9,077,551 327,469 168,590 (276,873) 8,959,557
- 43,533 - 381,222 424,755
74t 981 2,977,004 franTa (268,979) 47,617,036

3,608,498 216,716 - 748,956 4,574 1
5,852,828 501,472 86,380 2,035,238 8,303,158
8,864,620 379,427 149,681 (2,752,555) 6,341,811
- 75,621 - 164,041 239,662
18,325,946 1,173,236 236,061 195,680 19,458,801
26,838,035 1,803,768 18,909 (464,659) 28,158,235
$ 30,359,236 $ 1,803,768 $ 18,909 $ (1,407,879) $ 31,679,436
$ 830,777 $ -3 - 3 - 8 830,777
13,592,579 - 1,084 (252,464) 13,339,031
63,061,060 664,178 206,781 (606,572) 62,911,885
30,465,443 411,390 419,117 836,082 31,293,798
- 114,417 - - 114,417
107,119,082 1,189,985 626,982 (22,954) 107,659,131
9,730,840 468,230 1,084 (64,343) 10,133,643
31,525,125 1,340,683 181,590 535,952 33,220,170
23,273,914 1,059,733 419,117 (466,341) 23,448,189
- 11,442 - - a4 aan

64,529,879 2,880,088 601,791 £ 758

42,589,203 (1,690,103) 25,191 (28,222) 40,845,687
$ 43419980 $ (1,690,103) $ 25191 $ (28,222) $ 41,676,464
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CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (CONT.)

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety

Public works (including depreciation of infrastructure assets)

Culture and recreation
Economic development
Cemetery

Total governmental activities depreciation and amortization expense

Business-Type activities:
Enterprise Funds:
Electric utility
Gas Utility
Water Utility
Wastewater Utility
Refuse
Quail Ridge Golf Course
Internal Service Funds:
Management Services
Operations Center

Total business-type activities depreciation and amortization expense
LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended De

Outstanding

Outstanding

$ 166,719
281,665
334,863
248,793

69,250
27,964

$ 1120254

«

$ 1,335,423
121,232
460,591
680,150

99,822
53,225

59,588
58,615

S 2868646

1ber 31, 2017:

January 1, December 31,  Due Within
2017 Additions Deletions 2017 One Year
Government activities
General obligation bonds $ 10,871,807 - $1,221807 $ 9650000 $ 1,165,000
Capital leases 36,458 385,053 62,848 358,663 125,224
Interlocal agreement debt 32,000 167,500 32,000 167,500 33,500
Compensated absences 253,191 203,970 194,699 262,462 180,679
Net premium on issuance
of general obligation bonds 489,095 - 36,458 452,637 36,187
Net other postemployment
benefits obligation 281,387 41,064 19,821 302,630 -
Net pension liability 6,934,414 707,860 999,900 6,642,374 -
Total Inng-term liabilities -
1mental activites o ote,8¢ * 5447 $ 2567533 $178 266 N
J Ic! 3
weiicidl vunydtivn vunds $ 4,503,193 - $ 513,193 $ 3,990,000 $ 465,000
Capital leases 1,099,824 114,417 573,621 640,620 5471
Compensated absences 511,306 353,413 297,567 567,152 272,131
Net other postemployment
benefits obligation 398,919 59,092 22,978 435,033 -
Net pension liability 4,540,712 469,490 604,623 4,405,579 -
Total long-term liabilities -
Business-Type activities $ 11,053,954 996,412 $ 2,011,982 $10,038,384 $ 1,284,276
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT.)

General obligation bonds

General obligation bonds payable are serial bonds to be retired through calendar year 2030. At December 31,
2017, bonds consist of the following:

Bonds

Interest rates _ rirtetonding

General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 2.00%-3.10% $ 3,800,000
Series 2010-A

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012-A .80% - 1.60% 175,000

General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 3.00% - 4.00% 9,045,000
Series 2015-A

Taxable General Obligation Improvement Bonds, 3.00% - 3.00% ann pnn
Series B 2015

Total general obligation bonds outstanding 13,640,000

Less: debt service from enterprise funds - 0)

Total general obligation bonds payable from debt service fund $ 9,650,000

Remaining debt service requirements for general obligation bonds will be paid from the debt service fund with
future property tax revenues and special assessment taxes. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for
general obligation bonds to be retired from the debt service fund are as follows:

Year Brincipal Interest Trtnl

2018 $ 1,165,000 $ 298,225 $ 1,463,225
2019 1,080,000 266,825 1,346,825
2020 945,000 235,250 1,180,250
2021 875,000 208,875 1,083,875
2022 775,000 182,813 957,813
2023 805,000 159,750 964,750
2024 840,000 135,600 975,600
2025 615,000 110,400 725,400
2026 500,000 91,950 591,950
2027 485,000 76,950 561,950
2028 505,000 57,550 562,550
2029 520,000 42,400 562,400
2030 540,000 21,600 561,600
Total $ 9650000 $ 1,888,188 $ 11,538,"°°

Remaining debt service requirements for general obligation bonds to be paid from the Water Utility Fund is as
follows:

Voar Mrimninal Interest T

2018 $ 465,000 $ 103,785 $ 568, /85
2019 535,000 91,973 626.973
2020 550,000 78,198 628 18
2021 565,000 63,708 628,708
2022 575,000 48,261 623,261
2023 420,000 34,055 454,055
2024 430,000 21,305 451,305
2025 450,000 7,990 457,990
Total $ 3,990,000 $ 449275 $ 4,439,275
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT.)

Capitalized lease oblic ions

During 2013, the City Commission entert into al e agreement for financing a Caterpillar Wheel Loader.
The lease agreement provides for annual payments, including interest, in the amount of $13,436 and a lump-
sum optional buyout payment of $100,000 through June 2018.

During 2015, the City Commission entered into a lease agreement for financing a Caterpillar Motor Graders.
The lease agreement provides for annual payments, including interest, in the amount of $17,659 and a lump-
sum optional buyout payment of $174,000 through June 2018.

During 2015, the City Commission entered into a lease agreement for financing wastewater treatment plant
improvements and related equipment. The lease agreement provides for semi-annual payments, including
interest, in the amount of $274,119 through September 2018. In 2017, a temporary note was issued and part
of this will be used to payoff the remaining lease payable balance in 2018 as the lease payments come due.

During 2017, the City Commission entered into a lease agreement for the financing of two Skid-Steer Loaders
for the Wastewater Department. The lease agreement provided for a monthly payment in the amounts of
$4,358 and $4,286 and a lump-sum payment of $23,723 and $23,420 in June 2022, including interest.

During 2017, the City Commission entered into a lease agreement for the financing of a Skid-Steer Loader for
the Refuse Department. The lease agreement provided for a monthly payment in the amount of $4,162 and a
lump-sum payment of $22,356 in September 2022, including interest.

During 2017, the City Commission entered into a lease agreement for the financing of a Skid-Steer Loader for
the Street Department. The lease agreement provided for a monthly payment in the amount of $5,017 and a
lump-sum payment of $25,735 in August 2022, including interest.

The Skid-Steer lease payments are being financed from the City's Special Street and Highway Fund and the
Refuse Fund. The Wastewater treatment plant lease payments are being financed from the Wastewater Ultility
Fund.

2 cost and accumulated amortization of the leased equipment is as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

A ntivribtiae A ntiviidiAae
Cost b 424,/55 % 114,41/
Accumulated Depreciation 239,662 11,442

These leases qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, accordingly, have been recorded at the
present value of the net minimum lease payments at the date of the lease inception. The annual requi  1ents
to amortize the capital lease obligation outstanding at December 31, 2017, including interest payments, is as
follo

_ Busii Ty Inds
VWastewater Skid-Steer Skid-Steer

Year Ending Treatment Wastewater Wastewater
__Dec~~+~-"1, Plant Treatment Collection Recycle
2018 $ 548,229 $ 4286 $ 4,358 $ 4,162
2019 - 4,286 4,358 4,162
2020 - 4,286 4,358 4,162
2021 - 4,286 4,358 4162
2022 2'5 ANnA N%Y 704 NN 2AER
Total minimum lease payments 548,229 40,565 41,153 39,003
Less amounts representing
interest (9,221) (6,513) (6,604) (5,992)
Present value of net minimum
lease payments $ 539,008 $ 4052 ¢ 34549 § 33,011
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TEMPORARY NOTES (CONT.)

During 2017, the City issued $7,700,000 of temporary notes. The proceeds of the notes were used to repay
the Series 2016-1 temporary note, the Wastewater Treatment Plant Lease, and new construction projects.

At December 31, 2017, the City had the following outstanding temporary notes:

Amount
lmbavaant D Aada~ f'\l TN P e Rt ivibi, Mata
Capital Project Funds:
General Obligation Temporary Notes
Series 2016-2 - Hospital 2.00% $ 870,000 1/20/2020
General Obligation Temporary Notes
Series 2016-3 for:
14th Avenue Bridge Project 1.45% 203,883 12/1/2019
2017 KLINK Project 1.45% 321,117 12/1/2019
Total: 525,000
General Obligation Temporary Notes
Series 2017-1 1.40% 6,305,000 12/1/2018
Total temporary notes $ 7,700,000

During 2017, the temporary note activity for the various capital improvement projects were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Potannan
$ 2330000 & R3INAANN @ Q35000 $ /,/U0,U0U

ELECTRIC AND WASTEWATER DEPREC!IATION RESERVES

Applicable state statutes permit the governing body to legally restrict a portion of operating revenue to be used
for future acquisition of equipment and utility system improvements. Net position in the Electric Utility Fund in
the amount of $3,156,208 and in the Wastewater Utility Fund in the amount of $152,500 has been reserved for
the portion of assets legally restricted for future equipment acquisitions and facility improvements.

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND AUTHORIZATIONS

At December 31, 2017, individual project authorizations compared with project expenditures from inception
which are reported with the Capital Projects Fund are as follows:

Project Expenditures project inception
PrOJeCt mithAarimAatiana tmn ManmnmbhaAar 24 N4
Geometric KLINK Main Street $ 735,000 $ 729,571
Library Parking Lot 150,000 85,180
Country Club Villa 177,000 64,967
2016 KLINK 256,506 258,688
Hospital Improvements 870,000 864,655
Vaughn Tennis Center Project 1,026,108 1,001,745
Public Safety Needs Study 101,081 52,352
2015 EMS Ambulance 250,704 203,552
12th Avenue Project 404,325 404,325
14th Avenue Bridge Project 203,883 241 337
Baden Center Building Improvements 101,081 39,731
2016 Technology Upgrades 101,081 92,825
2017 KLINK 321,117 382,452
2017 Pierce Fire Truck 754 127 754,127
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10. PENSION PLAN

Plan description

The City of Winfield participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan as provided by Kansas law and administered by KPERS, a
body corporate and an instrumentality of the State of Kansas. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit
provisions. KPERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing
to KPERS (611 S. Kansas, Suite 100, Topeka, KS 66603) or by calling 1-888-275-5737, or at the KPERS

website at www.kpers.org.

KPERS provides benefit to the following statewide pension groups under one plan, as provided by K.S.A 74
article 49:

+ Public employees, which include:
» State/School Employees
* Local Employees

* Police and Firemen

» Judges

Substantially all public employees in Kansas are covered by the pension plan. The Statute of Kansas and
Kansas schools are required to participate, while participation by local political subdivisions is optional, but
irrevocable once elected.

Those employees participating in the pension plan for City of Winfield are included in the local employee
group and the Kansas Police and Firemen group.

Benefits Pr--~""'-d
Benefits are established by statute and may only be changed by the Legislature. Members with ten or more
years of credited service, may retire as early as age 55, with an actuarially reduced monthly benefit. Normal
retirement is at age 65, age 62 with ten years of credited service, or whenever a member's combined age and
years of credited service equal 85 "points."

Monthly retirement benefits are based on a statutory formula that includes final average salary and years of
service. When ending employment, members may withdraw their contributions from their individual accounts,
including interest. Members who withdraw their accur 3t contributions lose all rights and privileges of
membership. For all pension coverage groups, the accumulated contributions and interest are deposited into
and disbursed from the membership accumulated reserve fund as established by K.S.A. 74-4922.

Members  jose one of seven payment options for their monthly retirement benefits. At retirement a member
may receive a lump sum payment of up to 50% of the actuarial present value of the member's lifetime |  efit.
The monthly retirement benefit is then permanently reduced based on the amount of the lump sum. Benefit
increases, including ad hoc postretirement benefit increases, must be passed into law by the Kansas
Legislature. Benefit increases are under the authority of the Legislature and the Governor of the State of
Kansas.

The 2012 Legislature made changes affecting new hires, current members and employers. A new KPERS 3
cash balance retirement plan for new hires starting January 1, 2015, was created. Normal retirement age for
KPERS 3 is 65 with five years of service or 60 with 30 years of service. Early retirement is available at age 55
with | years of service, with a reduced benefit. Monthly benefit options are an annuity benefit based on the
account balance at retirement.

For all pension coverage groups, the retirement benefits are disbursed from the retirement benefit payment
reserve fund as established by K.S.A. 74-4922.
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10. PENSION PLAN (CONT.)
Contributions

Member contributions are established by state law, and are paid by the employee according to the provisions
of Section 414(h) of the internal revenue code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates are
determined based on the results of an annual actuarial valuation. The contributions and assets of all groups
are deposited in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement Fund established by K.S.A. 74-4921. All of the
retirement systems are funded on an actuarial reserve basis.

For fiscal years beginning in 1995, Kansas legislation established statutory limits on increases in contribution
rates for KPERS employers. Annual increases in the employer contribution rates related to subsequent
benefit enhancements are not subject to these limitations. The statutory cap increase over the prior year
contribution rate is 1.2% of total payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

The actuarially determined employer contribution rates and the statutory contribution rates for local
government employees are 8.46% and 8.46%, respectively. K.S.A. 74-4919 and K.S.A. 74-49,210 establish
the KPERS member-employee contribution rates. KPERS has multiple benefit structures and contribution
rates depending on whether the employee is a KPERS 1, KPERS 2 or KPERS 3 member. KPERS 1 members
are active and contributing members hired before July 1, 2009. KPERS 2 members were first employed in a
covered position on or after July 1, 2009, and KPERS 3 members were first employed in a covered position on
or after January 1, 2015. Effective January 1, 2015, Kansas law established the KPERS member-employee
contribution rate of 6% of covered salary for KPERS 1, KPERS 2 and KPERS 3 members.

Employer Allocations

Although KPERS administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, separate (sub)
actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined contribution rate by group. Following
this method, the measurement of the collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, d  rred
inflows of resources, and pension expense are determined separately for each of the following groups of the
plan:

+  State/School

* Local
* Police and Fireman
* Judges

To facilitate the separate (sub) actuarial valuations, KPERS maintains separate accounts to identify additions,
ictions, and fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation percentages presen for

each group in the schedule of employer and nonemployer allocations are applied to amounts presented in the

schedules of pension amounts by employer and nonemployer. The allocation percentages for eact

of J 30, 2017, t ooft tributio tc lo 1d no

contributions of the group for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017. The contributions used exclude

contributions made for prior service, excess benefits and irregular payments.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2017, City of Winfield reported a liability of $11,047,953 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, which was rolled forwa 0
June 30, 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the ratio of its
contributions to the total of the employer and nonemployer contributions of the group for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2017. The contributions used exclude contributions made for prior service, excess benefits and
irregular payments. At June 30, 2017, the City's proportion was 0.9678% percent, which was an decrease of
0.0115% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the actuarial report as of June 30 2017, there were changes in assumptions or benefits as described in the
notes to the required supplemental information.
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10. PENSION PLAN (CONT.)

Po-~ion Li~*"*'-~ ™-~-'on Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resourc-~ ~~¢ of

Irces Kxelaea 1o rensionge /T one

There were no changes between the measurement date of December 31, 2016, rolled forward to June 30,
2017, and City of Winfield's reporting date of December 31, 2017.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, rolled forward from June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension
expense of $1,231,512, which includes the changes in the collective net pension liability, projected earnings
on pension plan investments, and the amortization of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources for the current period.

At December 31, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 896,749 $ -
Differences between expected and actual experience 290,785 234,179
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 377,529 -
Changes in assumptions 682,129 65,274
Changes in proportion 192,171 324,695
Total $ 2439363 $ 624,148

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions totaling $896,748, resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows:

Year ended December 31, Amount
2018 $ 80,272
2019 515,048
2020 343,393
2021 (71,631)
2022 51,284
Thereafter -
$ 918,4

The City contributes 100% of the contributions to the pension plan, therefore, there is no revenue recogr = |
for the support provided by nonemployer contributing entities.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016, which was rolled
forward to June 30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement;

« Inflation 2.75 percent
+ Salary increases, including wage increases 3.50 to 12.00 percent, including
inflation

* Long-term rate of return, compounded annually,
net of investment expense, and including price
inflation 7.75 percent
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10. PENSION PLAN (CONT.)

Actuarial Assumptions (cont.)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables with age setbacks and age set forwards as well as
other adjustments based on different membership groups. Future morality improvements are anticipated used
Scale MP-2016.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study conducted for the period January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2015. The perience
study is dated November 18, 2016.

The actuarial assumptions changes adopted by the Pension Plan for all groups based on the experience
study:

» Price inflation lowered from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent

* Investment return assumption was lowered from 8.00 percent to 7.75 percent

* General wage growth assumption was lowered from 4.00 percent to 3.5 percent

* Payroll growth assumption was lowered from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent

The long-term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class as of the most recent experience study, dated November 18, 2016, as
provided by KPER's investment consultant, are summarized in the following table.

Long-term
target Long-term expected real
Asset class allocation rate of return
Global Equity 47.00% 6.80%
Fixed Income 13.00% 1.25%
Yield Driven 8.00% 6.55%
Real Return 11.00% 1.71%
Real Estate 11.00% 5.05%
Alternatives 8.00% 9.85%
Short-term Investments 2.00% -0.25%
Total 10" "%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The projection of cash floy
used to determine the discount rate was based on member and employer contributions as outlined below.

In KPERS, the State/School and Local groups do not necessarily contribute the full actuarial determined rate.
Based on legislation first passed in 1993 and subsequent legislation, the employer contribution rates certified
by the Board may not increase by more than the statutory cap. The statutory cap for Fiscal Year 2017 was 1.2
percent.

In recent years, the Legislature has made several changes to statutory rates that deviate from the schedules
contribution increases set under the caps established in 2012 for the State/School group. Under 2015 SB 4,
the previously certified State/School statutory rate for the Fiscal Year 2015 of 11.27 percent was reduced to
8.65 percent for the last half of the fiscal year as part of the Governor's allotment. That same session, SB 228
recertified statutory rates for the State/School group to 10.91 percent for Fiscal Year 2016 and 10.81 percent
for Fiscal Year 2017 in anticipation of the issuance of $1 billion in pension obligation bonds. Legislation in the
2016 session (SB 161) provided for the delay of up to $100 million in State and School contributions to
Pension Plan. Legislation passed by the 2017 Legislature removed the repayment provisions included in SB
161.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONT.)

Funding Policy

The contributions of the plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the City
Commission. The required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional
amount to prefund benefits as determined annually. City ret . pay 100% of their healthcare premiums; the
City is not required to share costs of retiree premiums.

The City's contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $2,065,913 of which 44% was
paid from governmental funds and 56% was paid from business-type funds.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarially determined liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following tables show the components of the City's OPEB cost for 2017:

Ammein ' "PEB ~~~* and ("~"1ation for 2017 _ Amou=t
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 110,367
Interest on net OPEB obligation 28,035
Adjustment to ARC meoan
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 100,158
Contributions made (42,801)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 57,357
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year cenang
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 737,663

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2017, and the five preceding years, is as follows:

% of Annual Net OPEB
Annual OPEB Net Employer OPEB Cost Obligation
Year ended Cost Contributions Contributed (asset)

12/31/112 $ 126,325 $ 38,825 30.73% $ 356,982
12/31/13 126,325 38,825 30.73% 444,482
12/31/14 131,791 42,557 32.29% 533,716
12/31/115 131,791 42,557 32.29% ¢ 951
12/31/16 100,156 42,800 42.73% 680,306
317 100,156 42,500 42.73% 737,661

Funded Statu- -—¢ -~ "ing Progress

As of December 31, 2017, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $969,013,
and there were no actuarial assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $969,013.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8,235,212, and the ratio of
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 11.8%.

Actuarial valuation of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the Plan and the ARC of the City are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented
as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents trend
information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONT.)

Actuarial Methods and As~——— %~~~

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as
understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. OPEB plans involve estimates of the v 1e of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future and, actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revisions as results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

In the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation (the most recent actuarial valuation received by the City), the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% percent
investment rate of return, an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 6.5% for 2016 and an ultimate rate of 5%
after 2021, and assumed inflation rate and projected salary increases at 3%. The UAAL is being amortized as
a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over a period of 30 years.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the Plan) in accordance with Internal Revenue
Cost Section 457. Employees may choose between VOYA Financial 457 Plan or the ICMA lan. The Plan,
available to all city employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Tl deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.
Assets of the Plan, values at current market values, are held in trust for the benefit of the participants.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the Plan as well as earnings attributable to those amounts, are
solely the property of the participant employees. Accordingly, the assets and related liabilities for the PI

not recorded in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, the City Commission has adop
resolution a salary reduction flexible benefit plan (125 Plan) under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue

All permanent full-time employees are eligible to participate in the 125 Plan beginning after one full month of
employment. Each participant may elect to reduce his or her salary to purchase benefits offered through the
125 Plan. Benefits offered through the 125 Plan include various insurances and disability benefits.

BUDGETARY DATA

As described in Note 1, the actual data presented in the budgetary comparison statements differ from data

p 1 corc 1 with ally unti  princig (GAAP) for the wvernr tal

b following reconciliation’s are pr yrovide a correlation between the different bases of
reporting:
Other N major
Debt Service Governmental

General Fund Fund Funds

GAAP Fund balance at December 31, 2017 $ 983693 $ 909,581 $ 564,580
Adjustments:

Accrued sales tax revenues (198,284) - -
Accrued franchise fee revenues (33,858) - -
Due to(from) other funds (20,265) (183,277) 183,277
Other receivables (285,326) - (30,881)
Land held for resale - - (710,252)
Reserves for encumbrances - budgeted funds (38,368) - (1,250)
Budgetary Fund Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - $ 726,304 $ 5,474
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The City established a 401(a) money purchase deferred compensation plan in 2004 for the benefit of City
employees. Employees, who have reached the top step in their position's pay range, and make a minimum
contribution of $20 per pay period into the City sponsored 457 plan, are eligible for employer contributions into
the 401(a) plan. The plan provides that the City make matching contributions, up to $20 per pay period. The
City contributed $43,620 to employee accounts in 2017. The City of Winfield administers the plan and has the
authority for establishing and amending the plan's provisions and contribution requirements. Employees have
the option of investing contributions with VOYA Financial or ICMA-RC Investments.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Individual interfund receivables and payables (due to/due from funds) at December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Fund NuA Tn— Due I:..Am_

Major Funds:
General $ 20,265 $ -
Debt Service 183,277 -
Electric Utility 55,909 -
Gas Utility 6,645 -
Water Utility 2,970 -
Wastewater Utility 4,912 -
Total major funds 273,978 -

Nonmajor Funds:

Stormwater Drainage - 183,277
Refuse 7.620 -
Operations Center - 70,000
Sales Tax - 28,321
Total nonmajor funds 7,620 281,598

$ 281508 $  ~etmog

The City utilizes two internal service funds to account for utility receivables and fleet management services.
Advances from the General Fund ($20,265), Electric Utility Fund ($27,588), Gas Utility Fund ($6,645), Water

Utility Fund ($4,912) were used to create the internal service funds. These advances are considered long-
term, and the intent is not to repay these amounts within one year.

The wunt due to the Debt Service Fund is related to debt service payments actually paid by the :bt
Service Fund in prior years' but were scheduled to be paid by the Stormwater Drainage Fund.

The amounts due to the 12th Avenue Project Fund are the result of cash deficiencies incurred at year-end by
other project funds for which temporary or permanent financing has been authorized by the governing body
but not yet issued at year-end.
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INTERFUND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund transfers by individual fund for 2017 is as follows:

~und Trmmnfas s Transfer= M1t
Major Funds:

General $ 2,328,369 $ 2,134,611
Debt Service 651,494 -
Capital Improvements 1,154,374 646,250
Electric Utility 563,000 2,672,740
Gas Utility - 421,146
Water Utility 145,000 198,509
Wastewater Ultility 100,000 130,000
Total major funds 4,942 237 6,203,256

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Parks and Recreation - 10,000
Water Preservation 45,949 8,300
Senior Citizens Facility 3,500 -
Special Liability 75,000 -
Special Streets and Highway 285,000 -
L.E. Ambulance and Fire Equipment - 1,075
Management Services - 17,500
industrial Development 49,000 1,500
Equipment Reserve 3,811 -
Alcohol and Drug Safety Action 15 -
Streets - Sales Tax 750,359 -
Stormwater Drainage - 30,000
Refuse - 107,686
Quail Ridge Golf Course 238,500 -
Total nonmajor funds 1,451,134 190,115
$ 6393371 §$ 6,393,371

Interfund transfers reflect the flow of resources from one fund to another fund, generally from the fund in wt

the resources are received or reside to the fund in which the resources will be

expended.

The General Fund received transfers from the Electric Utility, Gas Utility, Water Utility and Refuse Funds in the amounts of
$1,855,237, $199,146, $131,224 and $66,686 respectively. These transfers represent in lieu of franchise taxes ranging
from 4% to 6.9% of gross sales. The in lieu of taxes mirror the payment received from external utilities providing services
to the City, such as telephone and cable services. All other transfers represent operational transfers, capital equipment

transfers, and transfers to assist with debt service payments.
FUND DEFICITS
At Di ber 31, 2017, the following indiy

[ |

1al funds had incurred defic

Country  1b Villa

2016 KLINK

Hospital Improvements
Public Safety Needs Study
2015 EMS Ambulance

12th Avenue Project

14th Avenue Bridge

Baden Center Building Improvements
2016 Technology Upgrades
2017 KLINK

2017 Pierce Fire Truck

21,987
12,853
864,655
128,528
102,826
602,220
241,337
39,730
92,824
190,923
754,048

These fund deficits will be financed through the sale of bonds authorized by the City Commission, not yet sold

at December 31, 2017, or through other revenue sources available to the City.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (C( T.)
Natural Gas Purchase = mitments

The City entered into a contract with the Kansas Municipal Gas Agency (KMGA) in February 2014 to purchase
its entire gas requirements from and through KMGA for the term of the agreement. The contract provides that
the City may provide for alternative supplies not to exceed 35% of its total annual gas supply. The contract
provides for a year-to-year term until terminated by either party giving at least a 1-year written notice to the
other party.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the City made changes to the capital asset records and leased
equipment asset records to better reflect compliance with the City's capital asset depreciation and
capitalization policy. This resuited in an adjustment of ($1,455,865).

SUBSEQUENT E' TS

Management has evaluated the effects on the financial statements of subsequent events occurring through
the date of this report, which is the date at which the financial statement was available to be issued.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS
Required Supplementary Information
Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Schedule of Funding Progress:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Percent of
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payrol! Payroll
Actuarial Valuation Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)/c)
1/1/2012 - $1,068,057 $ 1,068,057 0.00% $ 7,875,204 13.56%
1/1/2014 - 1,132,796 1,132,796 0.00% 6,774,798 16.72%
1/1/2016 - 969,013 969,013 0.00% 8,235,412 11.77%
Schedule of Employer Contributions:
Annual
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net
Year OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed _ Oblir~t~n
12/31/2012 $ 126,325 $ 38825 § 356,82
12/31/2013 126,325 38,825 444 482
12/13/2014 131,791 42 557 533,716
12/31/2015 131,791 42 557 622,951
12/31/2016 100,156 42,800 680,306
12/31/2017 100,156 42,500 737,661
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Year ended December 31, 2017

Kansas Public Employees Retirement System

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Local
City's proportionate percentage of the net pension liability
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
City's covered employee payroll

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

Police and Firemen

City's proportionate percentage of the net pension liability
City's proportionate share of the net pension liat 'y
City's covered employee payroll

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered employee payroll

I n fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

2017

2016 N5

0.38608%
$5,592,197

$6,535,786

85.56%

72.15%

0.58177%

$ 5,455,754

$2,812,286

194.00%

70.99%

0.38485%  0.34185%
$5,953,805 $4,488,598

$6,705,665 $6,538,246

88.79% 68.65%

68.55% 71.98%

0.59448%  0.69902%

$5,521,321 $5,075,730

$2,891,488 $2,807,888

190.95% 180.77%

69.30% 74.60%

* Data became available with the inception of GASB Statement No. 68 during fi yo 2015,the re

10 years of data is unavailable.

-72-



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of City's Contributions
For the Year ended December 31, 2017

Kansas Public Employees Retirement System

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Local

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)
City's covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

Police and Firemen

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

2017 2016 ___ 5

$ 603892 $ 620,385 $ 650,603

(603,892) (620,385) (650,603)

$ 6,535,786 $6,705,665 $6,538,246

9.24% 9.25% 9.95%

$ 573,458 $ 678,363 $ 705,623

(573,458) (678,363) (7" =73)

[ [ - $ -

$ 2,812,286 $2,891,488 $2,807,888

20.39% 23.46% 25.13%

* Data became available with the inception of GASB Statement No. 68 during fiscal year 2015, therefore 10
years of data is unavailable. Data is measured as of the most recent fiscal year end.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Changes in benefit terms:

e 2012 Legislature made changes affecting new hires, current members and employers. A new
KPI 3 3 cash balance retirement plan for new hires starting January 1, 2015 was created. r
retirement age for KPERS 3 is 65 with five years of service or 60 with 30 years of service. Early
retirement is available at age 55 with ten years of service, with a reduced benefit. Monthly bene
options are an annuity benefit based on the account balance at retirement.

Changes in assumptions:

...e actuarial assumptions changes adopted by the Pension Plan for all groups based on the experience
study:

* Price inflation lowered from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent

* Investment return assumption was lowered from 8.00 percent to 7.75 percent

» General wage growth assumption was lowered from 4.00 percent to 3.50 percent

* Payroll growth assumption was lowe  from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent
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and funding sources.

Cemetery Improvements - Cemetery operations and maintenance expenditures are paid from this fund
with one-third of sales proceeds of each cemetery space and pre-need payments providing the funding
for this fund.

Library - to account for the City's tax levy funding of the operation of the Winfield Public Library.
Financing is provided by a specific tax levy.

Equipment Reserve - to account for the resources provided by other City funds to provide for future
equipment purchases.

Grants and Contributions - to account for federal and state grants and contributions from private
enterprise for general government type projects.

Alcohol and Drug Safety Action - to account for assessment fees collected by the Municipa! Court for
alcohol and drug related charges, as established by state statues. Resources can only be used for court
expenditures involved in adminis  ing the provisions of the related statute.

Barr Police Building - The City received a $542,972 bequest in 2015 restricted for use of police
improvements.

Streets - Sales Tax - to account for the .4% cent sales tax approved by the voters of the city beginning
July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2021 to be used for library, street and other capital improvements. The
first $600,000 of sales tax collections is committed to library improvements with 50% of the remaining
collections allocated to the library, to a maximum of $900,000, with the remaining resources for the
specified City purposes.

Stormwater Drainage - establishe in 1996 to fund major drainage projects throughout the City.
Financing is provided through stormwater drainage fees charges to City utility customers.

NONI \JOR CAPITAL PRO. CT FUNDS

The primary purpose of the capital projects fund is to account for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. Nonmajor projects included within
this fund type are as follows:

Geometric KLINK Main Street - to account for the costs of a street resurfacing project on a main traffic
way of the City. The Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) provides funding for a portion of the
project with the balance to be financed through the issuance of gen: Il obligation bonds.

Library Parking Lot Improvements - to account for the costs of renovating the parking lot at the
Winfield Public Library with financing to be provided from the issuance of general obligation bonds.

Country Club Villa - to account for future sewer line expansion to areas surroun 1g the Winfield
Country Club. Financing to be provided from the issuance of general obligation bonds and other
resources available to the City.

2014 Capital Equipment - to account for the proceeds from debt financing of certain equipment
purchases.

2016 KLINK - to account for the costs of a street resurfacing project on a main traffic way of the City.
KDOT provides funding for a portion of the project with the balance to be financed through the issuance
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of general obligation bonds.

Hospital Improvements - to account for facility improvements at the William Newton Memorial Hospital
with financing to be provided through the issuance of general « igation bonds to be repaid by the
hospital through a financing agreement with the City.

Vaughn Tennis Center Project - to account for the improvements to the tennis center facilities located
on the south end of Whittier Elementary School. The City entered into an agreement with the W ield
Unified School District No. 465, Southwestern College and the Winfield Recreation Commission to
expand and improve the tennis center.

Public Safety Nee ; Study - to account for a project authorized by the City Commission in 2015 to
determine the long-term solution for police, fire and ambul: e facilities.

2015 EMS Ambulance - to account for the financing of a new ambulance to be financed from the
issu: e of general obligation bonds or other resources available to the City.

12th Avenue Project - to account for infrastructure improvements for a portion of 12th Avenue to be
financed from the issuance of general obligation bonds and other resources available to the City.

Baden Center Building Improvements - to account for improvements to the Baden Center building to
be financing from the issuance of general obligation bonds and other resources available to the City.

2016 Technology Upgrades - to account for the purchase of technology equipment imaging upgrades
to be financed from the issuance of general obligation bonds and other resources available to the City.

2017 KLINK - to account for the costs of a street resurfacing project on a main traffic way of the City.
KDOT provides funding for a portion of the project with the balance to be financed through the issuance
of general obligation bonds.

2017 Pierce Fire Truck - to account for the costs of purchasing a new fire truck to be financed from the
issuance of general obligation bonds and other resources.

PERMANENT FUNDS

Cemetery Endowment - the fund is an endowment from  citizen and prohibits the use of the principal
and only the investment earnings can be used for cemetery improvements.
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Assets:
Cash and short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Land held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances

Liabiiities:
Accounts payabie
Accrued payrolf and taxes
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Property taxes receivable

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted-
Genera ernment
Public sarety
Stormwater drainage improvements
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Levee maintenance
Street improvements
Equipment acquisition
Committed:
Street improvements
Water quality programs
Fairgrounds improvements
Cemetery improvements
Assigned:
Capital projects

Total fund balances

Total lia es, deferred inflows

and funa balances

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2017

Special Law Senior
Alcohol  Enforcement Water Citizens Special
Program Trust Preservation Facility Liability

$ 29,002 $ 32,320 $ 142,333 §$ 8,777 $ 62,385

- - - - 110,491

$ 29,002 § 32,320 $ 142,333 $ 8,777 §$ 172,876

$ -8 - 8 - 8 4 3
843 - .
843 - - 4
- - - 110,491
- - - - 62,385
- 32,320 - - -
- - - 8,773
28,159 - - ;
- - 142,333 -
28,159 32,320 142,333 8773 __ 62385
$20002 § ""°W 0§ 142338 § 87T §172876
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Balance Sheet
ymajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
December 31, 2017

Alcohol Total
and Nonmajor
Grants Drug Barr Streets Special
Fairgrounds Cemetery Equipment and Safety Police Sales Stormwater  Revenue
Improvements Improvement Library Reserve  Cc utions Action Building Tax CDBG Drainage Funds
Assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 156,548 $ 72,241 $ - $ 2030 % 37,495 § 614 §$ 530,183 § 437,718 § - $ 387,256 $ 2,364,721
Accounts receivable - 660 - - - - - - - 12,771 31,172
Property tax receivable - - 481,101 - - - - - - - 594,230
Land held for resale - - - - - - - - - - 710,252
Total assets $ 156,548 $ 72901 $481,101 $ 2030 § 37,495 $ 614 §$ 530,183 § 437,718 § - $ 400,027 3,700,375
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,850 $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -3 - 3 - 8 - 8 9,974
Accrued payroll and taxes - - - - - - - - - - 15,192
Due to other funds - - - - - - - - - 183,277 183,277
Total liabilities 1,850 - - - - - - - - 183,277 208,443
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property taxes receivable - - 481,101 - - - - - - - 594,230
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable - - - - - - - - - - 710,252
Restricted:
General government - - - - - - - - - - 62,385
Public safety - - - - - - 530,183 - - - 562,503
Stormwater di 1ge improvements - - - - - - - - - 216,750 216,750
Culture and recreation - - - - - - - - - - 97,261
Health and welfare - - - - - 614 - - - - 28,773
Economic development - - - - - - - - - - 45,274
Levee maintenance - - - - - - - - - - 39,720
Streat improvements - B - - - - - 437,718 - - 437,718
£t ment acquisition - - - 2,030 37,495 - - - - - 39,525
Comunued: - - - - - - - - - - -
Street improvements - - - - - - - - - - 278,359
Water quality programs - - - - - - - - - - 142,333
Fairgrounds improvements 154,698 - - - - - - - - - 154,698
Cemetery improvements - 72,901 - - - - - - - - 72,901
Assigned: - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital projects - - - - - - - - - - 9,250
Total fund balances 154,698 72,901 - 2,030 37,495 614 530,183 437,718 - 216,750 2,897,702
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
and fund balances $ 156,548 § 72,901 $ 481,101 § 2030 § 37,495 § 614 § 530,183 $ 437,718 $ - $ 400,027 §$ 3,700,375
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Revenues:
Taxes
Inte rernmental revenues
Charyes for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total assets

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Cemetery

Debt service

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combir Statement of nues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Ambulance
Special Special Law Senior And Special Convention
Flood Parks and Alcohol  Enforcement Wiater Citizens Special  Equipment Streets and Industrial and
Control Recreation  Program Trust _Pre  sation Facility Liability Reserve Highway Development Tourism
$ - 8 - 8 - 3 - 8 - 3 - $143981 $ - 3 - 8 13,717 § -
- 25,191 25,191 - - 4,000 - - 699,872 - 92,363
314 16,184 215 254 1,047 68 484 5 4,892 278 273
- 1,432 1,896 234 - 2,153 - 3.786 4,115 7,100
314 42807 27,302 488 1,047 6,221 144 465 5 708,550 18,110 99,736
- - - - - - 191,615 - - 205 -
- - - (221) - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - 1,163,782 - -
- 20,934 - - - 8,286 - - - - -
- - 16,625 - 36,956 - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - 56,325 68,770
- - - - - - - - 35,942 - -
- 20934 3,625 (221) 36,956 8,286 191,615 - 1,199,724 56,530 68,770
314 21,873 10,677 709 (35.909) (2,065) 47,150) 3 (491,174) (38,420) 30,966
- - - - 45,949 3,500 75,000 - 285,000 49,000 -
- (10,000) - - (8,300) _ - (1,075) - (1,500) -
- 0,000) - - 37,649 3,500 75,000 (1,075) 285,000 47,500 -
314 11,873 10,677 709 1,740 1,435 27,850 (1,070)  (206,174) 9,080 30,966
39,406 76,615 17,482 31,611 140,593 7,338 34,535 1,070 484,533 710,422 14,308
$ 39720 $ 88488 $ 28,159 % 32,320 % 142333 § 8,773 § 62,385 § - $ 278359 § 719,502 4r ~7
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Revenues:
Taxes
intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total assets

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Cemetery
Debt service

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued}
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Alcohol Total
and Nonmajor
Grants Orug Barr Streets Special
Fairgrounds Cemetery Equipment and Safety Police Sales Stormwater Revenue
Improvements  Improvement Library Reserve Contributions Action Building Tax CDBG Drainage Funds

$ - 9 - 538,670 $ - % - 8 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 8 - $ 696,368.00
- - - - - - - - 4,250 - 850,867

15,716 - - - - - - - - 146,302 162,018

1,228 17,268 - 138 292 5 3,675 - - 2,842 49,462

24,956 500 - - 9,777 - - - - - 55,949
41,900 17,768 538,670 138 10,069 5 3,675 - 4,250 149,144 1,814,664

- - - 43,811 - - - - 4,250 - 239,881

R - - - 11,553 - - - - - 11,332

- - - - - - - 532,693 - 28,368 1,724,843

17,161 - 546,986 - - - - - - - 593,367

- - - - - - - - - - 53,581

- - - - - - - - - - 125,095

- 2,055 - - - - - - - - 2,055

- - - - - - - - - - 35,942

17,161 2,055 546,986 43811 11,553 - - 532,693 4,250 28,368 2,786,096
24,739 15,713 (8,316) (43,673) (1,484) 5 3,675 (532,693) - 120,776 (971,432)

- - - 3,811 - 15 - 750,359 - - 1,212,634
- (3,811) - - - - - - - (30,000) (54,686)

- (3811) - 3,811 - 15 - 750,359 - (30,000) 1,157,948

24,739 11,902 (8,316) (39,862) (1,484) 20 3,675 217,666 - 90,776 186,516
129,959 60,999 8,316 41,892 38,979 594 526,508 220,052 - 125,974 2,711,186

$ 154,698 $ 72,901 - $ 2,030 $ 37,495 § 614 $ 530,183 § 437,718 $ - $§ 216,750 $ 2,897,702




CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Flood Control Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Interest earnings

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contract  services
Commaodities

Total expenditures and encumbrances

I enues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Ar=~+ - Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Uni

$ pon e 200 § 314 § 114
10,250 10,250 - (10,250)
5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
17250 15 nEn - (15,250)
(15,050) (15,050) 314 15,364
24,844 24,844 39 “ne 14 RR2
$ 9,794 $ 9,794 § 39,720 § 27176
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Special Parks and Recreation Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Rent
Interest earnings
Mis:.  aneous

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Commodities
Capital outlay
Contingency
Transfers out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual Witk
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis {Under)
$ 18,000 $ 18,000 25191 § 7,191
15,200 15,200 18,402 3,202
385 385 733 348
1,000 1,000 1,432 e
34,585 34,585 45,7%° 11,173
- - 681 681
20,000 20,000 20,253 2
90,000 90,000 - (90,000)
10,000 10,000 "0 -
120,000 120,000 ana34 (89,066)
(85,415) (85,415) 14,824 100,239
123,107 123,107 7 and 140 443)
- 37,692 § 7692 $ 88,488 §$ 50,796
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Special Alcohol Program Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest earmnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
F sonal services
Commodities

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budget~- *mot~*~ Budgetary Over
Orj~--" Fimaet Basis (Under)
$ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 25191 $ 7,191
100 100 215 115
2,000 2,000 1 e0e ("
20,100 20,100 27,302 -T02
35,931 35,931 16,625 (19,308)
40N 100 - _ I!_
3~ 22031 16,625 (19,406)
(15,931) (15,931) 10,677 26,608
18’589 _ 40 EO?- A7 AO0N i1 4ﬁ7-)
3 2658 $ 2,658 $ 28,159 §$ 25,501

- 86 -



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Law Enforcement Trust Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual W  Final
Amounts Budget
B dgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis _ =en)
Revenues:
Interest earnings $ 100 $ 100 $ 254 $ 154
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 234 (& 78R)
Total revenues 10,100 10,100 488 (9,612)
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Capital outlay 5,000 ="M (221) (5,221)
Total expenditures and encumbrances 7,000 7,000 (221) 7 221)
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,100 3,100 709 (2,391)
Fund balance, beginning of year 27,542 27,542 31,611 4,069
Fund balance, end of year $ 30642 § 30,642 $ 32,320 $ 1,678

-87-



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Water Preservation Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Interest earnings
Transfer In
Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services
Commaodities
Transfer out
Total expenditures and encumbrances
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over

Original Final Basis Mlmdnny
$ 350 $ 350 § 1,047 $ 697
48,200 48,200 45,949 (2,750
48,550 48,550 46,996 /1 RRA
32,000 41,115 36,956 (4,159)
200 200 - (200)
8,300 _8nQ 8,300 -
40,500 49,615 45256 _ (4,359)
8,050 (1,065) 1,740 2,805
119,642 = 9,542 140,593 ot
$ 127592 $§ 118477 $ 142333 ° 23,856
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Senior Citizens Facility Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
o:A~gted Amounts Budgetary Over
orngin~ Final Basis Al
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ -
Interest earnings 20 20 68 48
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 2,153 (847)
Transfer In 2 500 neEnn ~ 0 -
Total revenues 10,520 10,520 9,721 (799)
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services 8,340 8,340 © 286
Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,180 2,180 435 (745)
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,614 5,614 7,338 1,724
Fund balance, end of year $ 7794 $ 7794 $ 8,773 § 979
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Special Liability Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Taxes
Interest Earnings
Transfer In

Tc revenues
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services
Commodities
Capital outlay

Contingency
Other

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Fil
Amounts Budget
Budgete” " ~-~"nts Bud ary Ov
Original Final Basis (Under
$ 144810 $ 144810 §$ 143,981 §$ ¢ )
100 100 484 384
75,000 75,000 75,000 _ -
219,910 219910 "7 “35 ‘445)
3,200 3,200 - (3,200)
150,000 150,000 189,231 38 i1
35,000 35,000 222 (34,778)
5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
1,360 1,360 2,162 802
194,560 194,560 191616 _  ~~*7
25,350 25,350 27,850 2,500
47,123 47,123 34,535 712,588)

$ 72,473 © 70472 § 62,385 § (1 3)
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Industrial Dev  pment Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2( '

Revenues:
Taxes
Ir stearnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers in

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Other
Transfers out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Varian
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
__ Nriqinal Fir~t Basis (Und

$ 14124 $ 14,124 § 13,717 $ (407)
607 607 4,393 3,786
49,000 49,000 49,000 _-
63,731 63,731 67,110 3,379
12,584 12,584 - (12,584)
1,400 1,400 1,325 (75)
50,000 50,000 55,205 5,205
- - 1,500 1,500
63,984 63,984 58,030 (5,954)
(253) (253) 9,080 9,333
807 807 170 =27
$==='_= RRA i . ‘:‘:i $ 9’?;(\ $ ¢ L6=
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Convention and Tourism Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Personal services
Contractual services
Commodities
Capital outlay
Other
Total expenditures and encumbrances
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
$ 105,000 $ 105,000 $ 92,363 $ (12,637)
300 300 273 (27)
300 300 7,100 __&=290
105,600 105,600 99,736 /B oan
433 433 7 (426)
58,530 58,530 41,490 (17,040)
7,328 7,328 2,013 (5,315)
10,500 10,500 784 (9,716)
32,000 32,000 24,476 (7 R
108,791 108,791 68,770 (40,021)
(3,191) (3,191) 30,966 34,157
8,480 8,4en ‘4308 5,828
¢ 5289 $ 5289 § 45274 § 20 nes
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Fairgrounds Improvement Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Cl ges for services
Miscellaneous
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Capital outlay
Contingency

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

ind balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original o Ee Pasis (Under)
$ 14,000 $ 14,000 $ 15,716 $ 1,716
- - 24,956 24,
400 400 1,228 828
14,477 14+ 41,900 27,500
25,000 25,000 17,161 (7.839)
_ 35,000 35,000 - (
60,000 40,000 17, (42,839)
(45,600) (45,600) 24,739 70,339
79,375 79,375 129,959 50 =4

33,775 § 33,775

e 45‘.4 cnc; -
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CITY OF WINF"~" D, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Bud

ary Basis

Cemetery Improvements Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Sale of lots
Interest earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Commodities
Transfers out
Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Fimat Bacie (Under)
$ 5,000 $ 5000 $ 16,058 $ 11,058
250 250 550 300
100 100 500 ann
5,350 5,350 17,108 b
26,500 26,500 2,055 (24,445)
_ - - 3,811 3,811
26,500 26,500 5,866 (20,634)
(21,150) (21,150) 11,242 32,392
76,334 76,334 2n,999 _ 115,339
] 55,184 $ 55,184 $ 72241 § 170”7
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budaetary Basis

Year Ended [

Revenues:
Taxes

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Appropriations to Library Board
Other

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Library Fur
ember 31, 2017
Variance
Actual Vv 1 al
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary O
Original Final Basis (Under)
$ 554,531 § 554531 §$ 538,670 (15,861)
549,459 549,459 538,895 (10,564)
5,072 5,072 8,091 e
554,531 554,531 546,986 _ 7 545)
- - (8,316) (8,316)
18,975 18,975 2315 (10,RRON
$ 18,975 $ 18,975 $ - (18,975)
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - £ getary Basis

Alcohol and Drug Safety Action Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Interest earnings
Transfers in

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Commodities

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
____ B-geted Amounts Budgetary O
Onginal Final Basis __ Nnden)
$ 10 § 10 5 % 5
200 200 15 (185)
210 210 20 (190)
100 100 - 100)
110 110 20 (90)
629 629 mn4 (35)
$ 738 $ 739 614 $_ M98
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Street - Sales Tax Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Ariginal Final Basis (Ura~=
Revenues:

Transfers in $ 768,200 $ 768,200 $ 750,359 $ (17,841)
Expenditures and encumbrances:

Capital outlay 850,000 850,000 532,693 (217 307)
Revenues over (under) expenditures (81,800) (81,800) 217,666 299,466
Fund balance, beginning of year 83,615 83,615 220,052 136,437
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,815 $ 1,815 $ 437,718 $ 435,903
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Stormwate @ 3e Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Charges for services
Interest earnings
Total revenues
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Contractual services
Commodities
Transfers out
Total expenditures and encumbrances
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
P-4jeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis M imtap
$ 151,000 $ 151,000 $ 150,893 $ (107)
750 750 2,842 2,092
151,750 151,750 153,735 1,985
51,200 51,200 2,513 (48,687)
59,850 59,850 25,855 (33,995)
20,000 20,000 30,000 10,000
131,050 134+ nen . 58,368 (72,682)
20,700 20,700 95,367 74,667
e neo 266,263 291,889 25,626
$ 28ROR? § 286,963 $ 387,256 $ 10M 202
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Debt Service Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Taxes
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Interest earnings
Transfers in

Total revenues
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Debt principal
Debt interest

Other
Debt issuance costs

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
_ "i~inal Final Basis (Un¢
$ 652,940 $ 652,940 $ 642,315 $ (10,625)
206,000 206,000 224,114 1€ 4
26,377 26,377 283,892 257,515
1,500 1,500 4,519 3,019
1,244 *43 1,311,143 1,211,386 (99,757)
2,197,960 7,960 2,366,226 168,266
1,735,000 1,735,000 1,735,000 -
445,393 488,258 465,348 (22,910)
6,829 6,829 9,504 2,675
- - 8,235 £ 5
" 187,222 2,230,087 2,218,087 (12,000)
10,738 (32,127) 148,139 180,266
391,220 391,220 £79,165 186,945
§ anoRg § 359,093 $ 726,304 $ 367,211
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Assets:
Cash and short-term investments

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
ymporary notes payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances (deficit):

Assigned:

Capital pr cts

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
December 31, 2017

Geom Library Vaughn Public
KLINK Parking Country 2016 Tennis Safety 2015
Main Lot Club Capital 2018 Hospital Center Needs EMS
Street 1provements Villa Equipment KLII Improvements Project Study Ambulance
$ (199,575) $ 64,820 $1,337,152 § 8,461 § 28 § 10545 $ 93,360 $ 780,133 $ 22
$ (¢ 5 3 64,820 §$1,337,*°" § 8461 § 28 § 10,545 $ 93,360 $ 780,133 § 22
$ - 8 - 8 579 § - 8 - 8 5,200 $ $ 1410 § -
- - 1,358,560 - 128,561 870,000 907,251 102,848
- - 1,359,139 - 128,561 875,200 908,661 102,848
(199,575} 64,820 (21,987) 8,461 (128,533) (864,655) 93,360 (128,528)  (102,826)
$ (199,57 § 64,820 $1,337,152 § 8,461 § 28 § 10,545 $ 93360 $ 780,133 § 22




Assets:
Cash and short-term investments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Temporary notes payable

Total liabilities

Fund balances (deficit):

Assigned:
Capital projects

Total liabilities and fund balances

- 201 -

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds (continued)
December 31, 2017
Total
Baden Nonmajor
12th Center 2016 2017 Capital
Avenue Building Technology 2017 ierce Project
Project Improvements Upgrades KLINK Fire Truck Funds
$ 211,375 $ 63,118 $ 10074 § 132641 $ 79 $ 2,512,183
3 211,375 § 63,118 $ 10,024 * 132,54 § 79 $ 2512,183
$ - 3 - $ - % 2,447 $ - $ 9,636
813,595 102 242 102,848 321,117 754,127 5,461,755
813,595 102,848 102,848 323,564 754,127 5,471,391
(602,220) (39,730) (92,824) (190,923) (754,048) (2,959,208)
$ 211375 $ 63,118 <« nN24 § 132,641 § 79 $ 2,512,183
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public Safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances (defi , beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit), end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, K  SAS

Combi ) Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Ge c Library Vaughn Public

I Parking Country 2016 Tennis Safety 2015

Lot Club Capital 2016 Hospital Center Needs EMS
Street improvements Villa Equipment KLINK Improvements Project Study Ambulance
$ $ -3 - 3 - % - 8 - 8 - % -3 -
- - - - - 30,243 - -
- - - - - 30,243 - -
- - - - - - 38,025 1,745
- 11,154 - 2,182 - - - -
1,787 - - - - - - -
- - - - 857,038 - - -
1,787 11,154 - 2,182 857,038 - 38,025 1,745
(1,787) _(11,154) - (2,182) (857,038) 30,243 (38,025) (1,745)
- - - - - (10,243) - -
- - - - - {10,243) - -
- (1,787)  (11,154) - (2,182) (857,038) 20,000 (38,025) (1,745)
( 575) 66,607 (10,833) °4m4 (126,351) (7,617) 73,360 (90,503) (101,081)
$ ( 575 % 64,820 $(21,987) $ 8,461 $(128,533) $ (864,655) $ 93,360 $(128,528) $ (102,826)
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public Safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

( erfinancing sources (uses):
Iransfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit), end of year

(

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2017

3 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Total
Baden Nonmajor
12th Center 2016 2017 Capital
Avenue Building Technology 2017 Pierce Project
Project Improvements Upgrades KLINK Fire Truck Funds
$ 725,000 $ - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 725,000
- - - 191,529 - 221,772
725,000 - - 191,529 - 946,772
- - 8,066 - - 8,066
- - - - 754,048 793,818
1,256,648 - - 379,756 - 1,649,740
- 36,419 - - - 38,206
- - - - - 857,038
1,256,648 36,419 8,066 379,756 754,048 3,346,868
(531,648) (36,419) (8,066) (188,227) (754,048) (2,400,096)
_ - - - - (10,243)
- - - - - (10,243)
(531,648) (36,419) (8,066) (188,227) (754,048) (2,410,339)
(70,572) (3,311) (84,758) (2,696) - (548,869)
$ (602,220) $ (39,730) $ (92,824) $ (190,923) § (754,048) $ (2,959,208)




CITY OF WINFIELD, KANAS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises. The fund measurers focus is upon determination of net income, financial
position and change in financial position. The following Enterprise Funds are reported:

Electric Utility - to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's electric generation and
distribution system. The City purchases electricity and maintains a 65 KW generation capacity. Ele ic
service is provided to approximately 7,500 meters both within the City and in surrounding areas, and sold
wholesale to neighboring towns. Financing is provided by user charges.

Gas Utility - to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's gas distribution system. The
City purchases natural gas and provides service to approximately 5200 customers. Financing is
provided by user charges.

' ter Utility - to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's water treatment plan and water
distribution system. The Winfield City Lake provides adequate quality water supply to Winfield citizens
providing water to approximately 5,200 meters. The City also provides water to five rur. water dis its
and one neighboring town. Financing is provided by user chary

Wastewater Utility - to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's wastewat: collection
system and wastewater treatment plan. The City collects and treats effluent of City residents pro ing
service to approximately 5,000 households. Financing is provided by user charges.

Refuse - to account for revenues and expenses related to the operation and main ance of the refuse
collection and recycling programs operated by the City. All activities necessary to provide such services
are account for into his fund, including but not limited to, : ninistration, operations and main  ance,
financing and related debt service, and capital improvements. In addition, a prorata portion of
administration, utility billings and collection expenses are charged to this fund from the a1 jement
Services Fund. Financing is provided by user charges.

Quail Ridge Golf Course - to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's eighteen hole If
course owned and operated by the City. The golf course revenues consist of memberships, round fees,
cart rentals and driving range  s.
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Operating Revenues:

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Charges for services and sales

Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Services and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Revenues over (under) expenses

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest income
Gain on joint venture

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Quail Total
Ridge Nonmajor
Golf Enterprise
Refuse Course Funds
$ 1372653 $ 318,089 $ 1,690,742
47,299 - 47,299
1,419,952 318,089 1,73€ L
1,210,810 617,449 1,828,259
_ AND ANy _I\n -~y 4 1_6:\004
1,313,917 778,223 1,99 ")
106,035 (360,134) (254,099)
5,990 - 5,990
21 21
6,011 - 6,011
112,046 (360,134) (248,088)
- 238,500 238,500
(107,686) - (107,686)
4,360 (121,634) (117,274)
1,024,339 951,805 i et
$ 1,028699 $ 830,171 $ 1 258,
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Other receipts
Payments to suppliers and providers
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by (used in) operations

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from capital lease obligation
bt service principal
Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

é 1g inc loss) to net cash
provided ( ating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (I to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources

related to pensions
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in accrued wages payable

(Increase) decrease in compensated absences payable
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions
(Increase) decrease in OPEB liability payable

(Increase) decrease in net pension liability payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Quail Total
Ridge Nonmajor
Golf Enterprise
Refuse Course Funds

$ 1,363,574 $ 317,238 $ 1,680,812
47,320 - 47,320
(481,954)  (311,967) (793,921)
(439,398)  (295,202) (734,600)
(292,053) 1 =4) (293,55™
197,489 (291,545) (94,056)
37,172 - 37,172
(37,381) - (37,381)
(95,589) 36,652 (58,937)
(95,798) 36,652 (59,146)

- 238,500 238,500

(107,686) - "n7.686
(107,686) 238,500 17no14
. E nnn - 5,990
(5) (16,393) (16,398)

720,348 33,480 753,828

$ 720,343 $ 17,087 $ 737430
$ 106,035 $ (360,134) $ (254,099)
103,107 60,774 163,881
(9,058) (851) (9,909)

- 507 507

9,458 996 10,454
12,461 2,561 15,022
2,127 1,932 4,059

2,615 (1,399) 1,216

(413) 552 139

(64) 2,351 2,287
(28'779) 1'4en (’)" Q‘g)
$ 197,489 §$ (291,545) $ (94,056)
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Revenues:

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Reven

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis

Electric

lity Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

C  ges for services
Use of money and property

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:

Personal services

itractual services

Commodities

Purchased energy

Capital outlay
Miscellaneous
Transfers out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amoun*~ Budgetary Over

Origin~' e Basis (Under)
$ 27,903,000 $ _ 903,000 $ 27,565,693 $ (337,307)
15,000 15,000 14,569 (431)
26,600 26,600 42,007 _ 15 407
27,944 ¢~ 27,944,600 27,622,269 (322,331)
2,147,341 2,147,341 2,051,550 (95,791)
599,145 599,145 431,026 (168,119)
2,234,754 2,234,754 1,930,879 (303,875)
19,600,000 20,061,688 19,912,105 (149,583)
802,000 802,000 714,408 (87,592)
15,750 15,750 10,345 (5,405)
~ 987,000 2,887 "1 2,672,737 (214,263)
28,285,990 28,747,678 27,723,050 (1,024,628)
(341,390) (803,078) (100,781) 702,297
864,790 864,790 345,206 (10
$ 523,400 §$ 61,712 $ 244,425 $ 182,713
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis
Water Utility Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amourt=  _ Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis {Under)

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 2,680,000 $ 2680000 $ 2,409,859 $ (270 H)

Use of money and property 500 500 827 327

Miscellaneous 15,970 15,970 25,149 9,179

Transfers in 85,000 °=,000 145,000 60,000

Total revenues 2,781,470 2,7°1 470 2,580,835 _ /2n0,635)

Expenditures and encumbrances:

Personal services 782,813 782,813 819,542 36,729

Contractual services 219,925 219,925 221,201 1,276

Commodities 740,526 740,526 673,275 (67,251)

Capital outlay 206,000 206,000 143,841 (62,159)

Miscellaneous 20,400 20,400 16,968 (3,432)

Transfers out 750,642 750,642 758,401 7,759

Total expenditures and encumbrances 2777706 2,720,306 2,633,228 (87,078)

Revenues over (under) expenditures

and encumbrances 61,164 61,164 (52,393) (113,557)
Fund balance, beginning of year 30624 30,624 (8,075) (38,699)

Fund balance, end of year $ 91,788 $ 91,788 3 (60,468) $ (152,256)
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis

Wastewater Utility Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Re wes:
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Temporary not proceeds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Personal services
Contractual services
Commodities
Capital outlay
Miscellaneous
Debt service
Transfers out

Tc expenditures and encumbrances

:venues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
$ 1,998,100 $ 1,998,100 $ 1,914570 $ (83,530)
1,000 1,000 923 77)
- - 548,229 548,229
6,580 6,580 22 686 16,106
2,005,680 2,005,680 2,486,408 _ “49n77g
712,128 712,128 670,419 (41,709)
289,011 289,011 295,916 6,905
346,735 346,735 251,621 (95,114)
150,100 160,100 104,792 (45,308)
1,050 1,050 1,235 185
548,239 548,239 551,239 3,000
80,000 80,000 130,000 50,000
7 127,263 2,127,263 2,005,222 (122,041)
(121,583) (121,583) 481,186 602,769
123,575 123,575 98,440 (25,135)
$ 1,992 $ 1,992 ¢ 579626 $ A77 R34
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and ( anges in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis
Refuse Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis ‘Under)
avenues:
Charges for services $ 1,353,000 $ 1,353,000 $ 1,351,755 $ (1,245)
Use of money and property 3,500 3,500 5,990 2,490
Miscellaneous 20,000 20,000 25,527 5,627
Total revenues 1,376,500 1,376,500 1,383,272 6,772
Ex; ditures and encumbrances:
Personal services 490,117 490,117 463,941 (26,176)
Contractual services 334,585 334,585 318,002 (16,583)
Commodities 475,521 475, 434,291 (41,230)
Capital outlay 102,000 102,000 71,774 (30,226)
Miscellaneous 925 925 801 (124)
Transfers out 75,700 75,700 107,686 31,986
Total expenditures and encumbrances 1,478,848 1,478,848 1,396,495 (82,353)
Revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances (102,348) (102,348) (13,223) 89,125
Fund balance, beginning of year 686,7 68677 651,024 (3¢
Fund balance, end of year $ 584,358 $ 584,358 § =27 ent ¢ 53 442
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis
Quail Ridge Golf Course Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Und=n

Re ues:

Charges for services $ 394325 $ 394,325 % 312,775 $ (81,550)

Transfers in 256,000 256,000 238,500 (17 &nQ)

Total revenues 650,325 650,325 551,275 (99,050)

penditures and encumbrances:

Personal services 313,716 313,716 300,799 (12,917)

Contractual services 94,262 94,262 66,279 (27,983)

Commodities 203,850 203,850 172,563 (31,287)

Capital outlay 32,500 32,500 31,878 (622)

Miscellaneous 2,165 2,165 _ 240 1 E23)

Total expenditures and encumbrances 646,407 644 403 7o Aes Tt

Revenues over (under) expenditures

and encumbrances 3,832 3,832 (20,886) (24,718)
Fund balance, beginning of year 64 a4 7249 7408
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,806 $ 2,896 © _ 13637) 3§ M7 E

-114 -



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for services performed by one governmental department to
other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis, and for risk financing activities. The
following Internal Service Funds are reported:

Management Services - a cost center for the City's engineering, management information systems,
utility billing and general administration departments' expenses. These expenses are charged to  er
City funds based on several criteria and ratios.

Operation Center - a cost center for the City's operations building and its equipment and for the Service
Center department activities. The buil 1g and equipment maintenance costs are charged to other City
funds on a square footage basis. The Service Center charges other departments based onu:  e.

Risk Management Reserve - pays for deductibles, ex: ;s liability losses, uninsu losses, and
insurable losses not otherwise covered by commercial insurance. Funding is provided by annual
contributions form other City funds that have insurable risk, based on actuarial computations pro led by
an insurance consultant. The City purchases commercial insurance coverage for substanti areas of
risk, including property loss, auto liability, boiler and m: iy and general and public officials’ liability.
Individual funds pay their portions of insurance policy premiums that are recorde
expenditures/expenses in those funds.

Worker's Compensation Reserve - accounts for all workers' compensation-related claims, judgements
and expenses through Septeml 24, 2011. At this time, the City purchased workers' compensation
insurance to cover all future claims. The City's workers' compensation program was a partially self-
funded program covering substantially all full-time an part-time employees of the City. Fund has been
provided by annual contributions form other City functions that have an insurable risk, based on actuarial
computations provided by an insurance consultant.

:alth Insurance Reserve - created to eventually fund a partially self-insured health insurance prog n.
The fund currently is used to pay a portion of the emplo  : health insurance premiums.

Short Term Disability Reserve - used to provide short-term disability for up to twenty-six weeks of
financial assistance to City full-time em| iyees following sixty days of continuous disability.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis
Management Services Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
Personal services
Contractual services
Commodities
Capital outlay
Miscellaneous
Contingency
Transfer out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures,
encumbrances, and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Actual With Fin
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary O
Original Final Basis (B
$ 3,255,089 $ 3,255,089 $ 3,219,234 $ 35 )
35,350 35,350 47,770 12 420
3,290,439 3,290,439 3,267,004 (23,435)
2,429,774 2,429,774 2,361,708 (68,066)
666,268 666,268 697,377 31,109
164,385 164,385 138,751 (25,634)
40,000 40,000 17,143 (22,857)
29,865 29,865 34,325 4,460
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
- - 17,500 17,500
3,331,292 3,331,292 3,266,804 (64,488)
(40,853) (40,853) 200 41,053
42,163 42,163 1,136 (41,027)
$ 1,310 § 1,310 § 1,336 * 26

-119-



CITY OF W FIELD, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis
Operations Center Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Fip=! _ _ R=sjs e
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 638803 $ 638803 $ 520,400 $ (118,403)
Miscellaneous 950 950 667 (283)
Total revenues I 639,753 £21,066 (118 )
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Personal services 391,665 391,665 360,681 (30,984)
Contractual services 123,398 123,398 113,778 (9,620)
Commodities 76,000 76,000 42,239 (33,761)
Capital outlay 45,000 45,000 4,756 (40,244)
Miscellaneous 1,750 1,750 892 (858)
Transfers 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Total expenditures and encumbrances } /42 813 642,813 £97 346 Ann aem
Revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances (3,060) (3,060) (1,280) 1,780
Unencumbered ca  beginning of year 8,936 2 036 343 ‘e £93)

Unencumbered cash, end of year $ 5876 $ 5876 $ (937) $ (6,813)




CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

. .Juciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agent capacity for others and, therefore,
are not used to support the government's own programs. The following Fiduciary Funds are reported:

Payroll Clearing - to account for moneys held on behalf of Citv employees' payroll for related payr
taxes, retirement contributions, insurance and other authorized w  10ldings by City employees.

Fire Insurance Proceeds - to collect and pass through flexible benefit contributions.

Sales Tax - to account for sales tax collected and to be remitted tc e State of Kansas.

Flexible Medical - to account for moneys held on behalf of City employees' payroll for reimbursement of
qualifying medical expenses by City employees.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

COMPONENT UNITS

Winfield Public Library

The Winfield Public Library is reported as a discretely presented component unit within the financial
statements of the City of Winfield (the reporting entity) to emphasize its separate legal status. The
Winfield Public Library Board is appointed by the City Council and operates the public library of e City.
The Library Board taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the City and are included as part of the
City's total tax levy. There taxes are accounted for in the Library special revenue fund of the City. The
Library Board also received funding through state assistance programs, fines and donations from the
public.

Winfield Housing Authority

The Winfield Housing Authority was created in 1978 as an agent of the City under K.S.A. 17-2340. Tt
City Commission appoints all Board members and has the ability to impose its will on the Winfield
Housing Authority. Although the City does not have the authority to approve or modify the Housing
Authority's operational and capital budgets, and the Housing Authority has the authority to issue bonded
debt, the City is fiscally responsible for the Housing Authority since it was create as an agency of the
City. The City has delegated to the Housing Authority the power to operate and manage the low-rent
housing projects of the City. The Housing Authority is or  June 30th fiscal year end and financial data
included in these financial statements are for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Winfield Housing Au  ority
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Assets:
Cash including investments
Security deposits
Accounts receivable, net
HUD restricted capital grant receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Land
Buildings
Furniture, equipment and machinery
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Salaries and benefits payable
Tenant security deposits
Tenant prepaid rents
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in one year
Due after one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
ferred inflows - HUD capital grant receivable
ferred inflows related to pensions
De red operating subsidy

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 87,389
8,307
664
63,185

278
3,888
52,776
3,315,380
291,879

(2,319,334)

1 RQ1'828

21,127

17,390
5,749
16,487
151

1,025

124 s

204,822

80,202
7,924
=,616

94,/

1,340,701
63,185

(150,395)

$ 1,')2') AO1
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS
Winfield Housing Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expe ¢ and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Operating Revenues:

Dwelling rentals 3 129,432
HUD operating subsidies 71,850
Other operating income ° 754

Total operating revenues 210,036

Operating _. penses:

Payroll and employee benefits 122,199
| intenance and repairs 24,505
Utilities 7,690
Insurance 19,530
Administration 38,951
P: entsin lieu of taxes 12 4
Depreciation 100,524
Miscellaneous expenses _ 24ns
Total operating expenses 327,979
Operating loss (117,943)
Nonoperating revenues - interest income 114
Loss before capital contributions (117,829)
HUD capital improvement grants 56,ns7
Change in net position (61,772)
Net position, beginning of year 1,21F 282
M p ion, end of" ® A nEn 4ana
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Assets:
Cash including investments
Leasehold cost
Computers and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Books, audio visual, and automation
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
eferre outflows related to pensions

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due after one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Winfield Public Library
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

$ 625,766
2,162 i
182,083
112,516
249,454

(902,738)

2,429,967

AR 7NQ

7,760
15,652

194,489

17,857

1,804,2(
46N 199

$ 2264330
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS
Winfield Public Library
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Operating Revenues:

Appropriations from City of Winfield $ 538,895
Operating grants, gifts and memorials 74,564
Charges for services 14,892
Charges for fines 7,520
Investment earnings 2,390
Miscellaneous 2,947
Intergovernmental - state aid 3,779

Total operating revenues 644,987

Operating Expenses:

Current;
Personal services 348,064
Materials and services 162,369
Gifts and memorials 441
Grants 19,797
Depreciation 63,487
Capital outlay 12,099
Total expenses ____gnene7
Revenues over expenses 38,730
Net position, beginning of year 2,225,600
Net position, end of year $ 274330
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Winfield's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
indicates about the government's overall financial health.

~etgmie Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 129
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 135
significant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of 139

the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 147
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
Th schedules contain sen and i ‘ucture data to help the  der 149

understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services
the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is denved from the City's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year.
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Governmental activities
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities
net position

Business-type actvities
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities
net position

Primary government
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government
net position

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 1
2008 ] 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 16,604,943 $18 441 $15221,844 $16,091,925 $ 16,850,705 $ 17,623,357 $ 16,436,223 $17,577,431 $ 18,881,347 $ 20,175,047
1,697,377 744,041 1,100,540 1,001,143 903,217 1,582,593 897,959 2,424,216 3,096,336 4,037,430
1,613,399 1,747,071 4,814,451 4,296,353 5,240,513 3,957,875 6,018,000 (2,175,827) (2,327,930) _ (4,498,957)

$ 19,915,719 § 20,958,553 §$21,136,835 §$21,389,421 $22,994,435 $2°°°825 §$23,352,182 §$17,825820 §$ 19,649,753 §$ 19,713,520
$ 38,069,991 §$ 39,034,768 $39,238,338 $38,560,011 $37,304,887 $37,119,806 $ 38,288,922 $38,571,383 $38,952,498 $ 36,999,468
200,316 ),000 200,( - - - - - 2,574,319 3,308,708
6,429,463 8,171,269 9,145,650 11,038,264 11,902,772 11,561,504 10,405,524 6,655,354 1,132,671 1,337,375
$44,699,770 $47 3,037 $48,583,988 $49,598,275 $49,207,659 $48681,310 $48,694,446 $45226,737 $ 42,659,488 $ 41,645,551
$ 54,674,934 $57 209 $ 54,460,182 $ 54,651,936 $ 54,155,592 § 54,743,163 §$ 54,725,145 $ 56,148,814 §$ 57,833,845 § 57,174,515
1,897,693 944 041 1,300,540 1,001,143 903,217 1,582,593 897,959 2,424 216 5,670,655 7,346,138
8,042,862 9,918,340 1377101 15,334,617 17,143,285 15,519,379 16,423,524 4,479,527 (1,195,259) (3,161,582)
$64,615489 §68,364590 $69,77"°"3 $70987,696 $72202,094 §$71,845135 § 72046628 §$ 63,052,557 §$ 62,309,241 § 61,359,071
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Expenses

Governmental Activities:
General government $ 100780 $ 1,136,384 $ 1378157 $ 1,284,081 $ 1296695 $ 1679541 § 2536371 $ 2681384 § 1857537 $ 1313256
Public safety 4,799,553 4,363,022 4,486,349 4,493,341 4,588,327 4,467,782 5,497,169 6,533,821 5,839,730 6,590,362
1blic works/stormwater 1,750,265 1,511,058 1,391,930 1,392,216 1,413,920 940,998 1,354,619 303,226 1,874,415 1,426,464
Cemetery 163,789 142,764 164,665 145,656 156,726 170,300 172,554 166,866 176,880 155,216
Culture and recreation 2,157,393 1,405,506 1,910,251 2,044,763 1,986,876 3,295,984 2,465,021 1,980,871 2,369,941 2,352,435
Health and welfare 313,261 353,557 333,945 341,963 344,062 327,336 37,455 101,146 78,513 935,641
Economic development 175,827 165,271 148,777 185,683 305,823 163,584 146,271 190,447 278,007 461,928
Interest on debt 525,663 483,691 500,300 452,192 487,573 613,933 449,271 459,790 154,058 303,648
Total governmental activities expenses 10,893,641 9,561,253  107°**"74 *""19,895 10,580,002 11 """ 158 12,658,731 12,417,551 _ *~ """ 701 13,538,950

Business-type activities:
Electric 25,974,432 20,755,104 21,107,926 22,331,177 24,216,773 24,159,020 27,821,735 24,958,831 26,856,102 25,798,434
Gas 6,249,824 4,565,950 4,433,654 4,160,674 3,507,599 4,054,864 4,946,102 3,376,428 3,087,782 3,469,446
Water 2,461,897 2,443,606 2,318,531 2,354,597 2,433,503 2,352,849 2,206,641 2,322,396 2,136,541 2,434,505
Refuse 1,305,321 1,231,637 1,200,127 1,247,376 1,151,417 1,137,167 1,323,129 1,322,722 1,363,589 1,313,917
Wastewater 1,900,444 1,730,487 1,865,241 1,849,088 1,844,635 1,714,342 1,622,762 1,954,858 2,302,971 2,018,355
Golf course 939,736 881,196 813,684 762,407 681,748 581,179 539,075 611,452 581,613 678,223
Tc¢  Husiness-type activities expenses 38,831,654 31,607,980 31,739,163 32,705,319 33,835,675 33,999,421 38,359,445 34,546,687 36,328,598 35,712,880
Total primary government expenses $ 49725295 $ 41,169,233 $ 42,053,537 § 43,045214 $ 44415677 $ 45658879 $ 51,018,176 $ 46,964,238 § 48,957,679 $ 49,251,830
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Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works/stormwater
Cemetery
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic Development
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Totai governmental activities
program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Electric
Gas
Water
Refuse
Wastewater
Golf course
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities
program revenues

Total primary government
program revenues

Net (Expenses)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net expense

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
$ 403,991 §$ 401,180 $ 662,013 $ 351,445 § 336,317 $ 416,522 $ 499031 $ 355,557 303,368 $ 643,513
213,522 244,913 223,217 217,361 233,349 225,052 1,431,890 637,143 1,008,550 1,060,172
157,989 168,703 149,339 149,761 150,130 146,302 199,247 151,162 157,748 184,720
43,285 51,560 53,860 70,245 63,810 51,550 50,403 44,662 44,445 77,565
479,106 520,190 544,552 532,471 508,072 388,829 407,773 583,748 563,921 647,920
188,322 189,415 189,856 187,630 178,714 177,307 180,974 399,189 - 451,329
3,831 -
469,169 484,355 641,420 553,306 646,035 619,871 463,505 606,833 1,295,256 735,755
2,247,932 594,320 13,286 55,651 1,118,000 499,185 255,641 614,080 307,425 1,603,376
4,203,316 2,654,636 2,477,543 2,117,870 3,234,427 2,524,618 3,488,464 3,392,374 3,684,544 5,404,350
24,141,325 24,760,069 22,771,769 24,623,166 26,074,970 25,075,556 29,332,542 26,922,703 27,469,873 27,691,161
6,586,008 5,501,142 5,455,036 4,955,953 3,750,750 4,366,055 5,539,500 3,990,898 3,135,190 3,325,465
2,053,763 2,040,831 2,134,745 2,375,968 2,470,167 2,188,618 2,280,116 2,334,501 2,349,167 2,507,101
1,468,186 1,379,395 1,401,131 1,394,287 1,379,195 1,385,780 1,365,123 1,374,125 1,367,750 1,419,973
1,645,841 1,672,416 1,809,506 1,942,758 2,072,943 2,094,907 2,015,682 1,940,840 2,101,798 1,869,697
510,225 508,703 468,167 459,404 448,759 411,866 348,137 347,342 330,211 318,089
456,579 199,131 798,404 113,230 85,932 762,833 195,159 122,547 - -
36,861,927 36,061,687 34,838,758 35,864,766 36,282,716 36,285,615 “1,076,260 37,032,956 36,753,989 37,131,486
$ 41,065243 $ 38716,323 $ 37,316,301 $ 37982636 $ 39,517,143 $ 38,°%" "33 $ 44564724 §$ 40425330 $ 40,438,533 $ 42535836
$ (6,690,325 $ (6,906,617) $ (7.,836,831) $ (8,222,025) $ (7,345575) $ (9,134,840) $ (9,170,267) $ (9.025177) $ (8,944,537) $ (8,134,600)

(1,969,727)

4,453,707

3,099,595

3,159,447

2,447,041 2,286,194

2,716,816

2,486,269

425,391 1,418,606

$

(8.660,052) $

(2,452,910) $

(4,737,236) $ (5.062,578) $

(4,898,534) $ (6,848,646)

$ (6,453,451

$ (6,538,908) $ (8,519,146) $ (6,715,994)
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General Revenues and Other
Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Other taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes
Investment earnings
cellaneous
Special items
Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Investment earnings
In lieu of franchise fees
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 ~014 2015 2016 2017
$ 3613367 $ 3946608 $ 3995278 $ 4133774 $ 3941589 $ 4,156,656 $ 4157886 $ 4,068492 § 4122880 4,200,161
1,796,192 1,642,867 1,650,437 1,802,734 1,744,484 1,765,516 2,221,697 2,814,924 2,593,154 2,610,928
232,233 208,506 217,851 197,907 247,602 218,778 200,961 173,254 162,633 154,830
119,667 117,440 127,883 164,781 144,171 137,802 116,005 172,802 154,121 167,937
2,209,5 2,097,169 1,987,491 2,090,193 2,576,964 2,503,962 2,530,448 2,643,580 2,877,787 2,252,293
169,269 67,920 21,433 9,874 11,056 17,741 15,085 11,666 27,740 36,798
68.148 107,661 44,392 - - 161,977 57,071 84,349 - -
1,976 - - - - - - - - -
(693,327) (238,720) (29,652) 75,348 284,722 341,798 117,128 149,472 161,529 231,°"7
9,481,660 7,949,451 8,015,113 8,474,611 8,950,588 9,304,230 9,416,281 10,118,539 10,099,844 9,654,232
230,619 111,009 36,195 20,381 24,030 33,217 23,540 25,308 46,676 51,035
(2,209,504)  (2,097,169)  (1,987,491)  (2,090,193)  (2,576,964)  (2.503,962)  (2,530,448)  (2,643,580)  (2,877,787)  (2,252,293)
693,327 238,720 29,652 (75.348) (284,722) (341,798) (117,128) ("2 (16” =~ (231,285)
(1,285,558) _ (1,747,440) _ (1,921,644)  (2,145160) _ (2.837.656) _ (2,812,543)  (2,624,036)  (2.,767.744) _ (2.992640) _ (2,432,543)
$ 8196102 $ 6,202,011 $ 6093469 $ 6329451 $ 6,112,932 § 6491687 § 6,797~°" § 7,350,795 § 7,107,204 7,221,689
2,791,335 1,042,834 178,282 252,586 1,605,013 169,390 246,014 1,093,362 1,155,307 1,519,632
(3,255,285) 2,706,267 1,177,951 1,014,287 (390,615) (526,350) 92,779 (281,475) (2,567,249) (1,013,937)
$ (463,950) $ 3,749,101 $ 1,356,233 $ 1,266873 $ 1,214,398 § (356,960) $ 338,793 3 811,887 $ (1,411,942) § 505,695
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CITY OF WIN LD, KANSAS

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 3
2008 2( . 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General fund
Reserved $ 41,336 $ 347 $ 28911 § - $ - 8 - 8 - $ - 8 - 3 -
Nonspendable - - - 20,265 20,265 20,265 20,265 20,265 20,265 20,265
Restricted - - - - - - - 218,132 - -
Committed - - - - - - - - - -
Assigned 331,883 336,688 226,205 418,171 464,835 580,434 1,171,872 976,043 330,351 270,293
Unassigned - - - - - - - - 606,992 693,135
Total general fund $ 373,219 § 361,535 $ 255,116 § 438,436 $ 485,100 $ 600699 $ 1,192137 § 1,214,440 $ 957,608 $ 983,693
All other governmental funds
Reserved $ 812,756 $ 517,816 §$ 322,885 $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ - % -
Nonspendable 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 722,252 716,252 716,252 716,300
Restricted 1,491,587 1,023,398 1,453,568 995,143 1,575,860 1,496,982 829,976 1,546,813 2,380,084 3,300,865
Committed - - - 422,139 348,373 291,949 327,030 450,250 816,084 648,291
Assigned - - - (33,924) 669,560 943,224 1,283,045 (25,097) 170 9,250
Unassigned - - - - - (“?°33) - - (610,033) (3,200,545)
Total other governmental funds $§ 7710343 $§ 1547214 32453 $§ 1389358 § 099,793 § 26vas22 $ 3,162,302 § 2688218 § 3,302,557 § 1,474,161

*In 2011, The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 under which governmental fund balances are reported as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned compared to
previous years.
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Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Franchise taxes
Special assessments
Fines and penalties
Licenses, fees, and permits
{nvestment eamings
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works/streets
Cemetery
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Debt service:
Debt principal payments
Debt interest payments
Temporary note principal pymts
Temporary note interest pymts
Discount on temporary note
Debt issuance costs
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Transfers in - Pymts in lieu

of franchise fees

Issuance of temporary notes
Issuance of bonds
Issuance of refunding debt
Premium on bonds issued
Issuance of KP™T debt
Issuance of ¢z lease
Paymants to esuiuw agent
Advance payments of specials
Insurance recoveries
Debt issuance costs
Sales of property

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANAS

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 4
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

3613367 $ 3946608 $ 3995277 $ 4,133774 $ 3941589 $§ 4156656 $ 4,157,886 $ 4,081,948 $ 4122880 $ 4,200,160
1,796,192 1,642,867 1,650,437 1,802,734 1,744,484 1,749,986 2,221,697 2,814,924 2,593,154 2,610,927
1,228,607 1,130,876 1,209,844 1,107,981 1,166,436 1,174,855 984,128 1,175,486 1,674,896 2,052,388
661,048 625,933 747,203 770,710 559,154 568,504 1,810,152 1,336,419 1,721,968 1,914,875
232,233 208,508 217,851 197,907 247,603 180,218 200,961 173,254 162,633 154,831
168,392 163,672 206,224 207,926 258,707 205,071 223,940 204,679 243,164 224 114
176,362 160,454 132,875 134,467 120,658 119,892 99,604 100,911 84,232 108,868
56,228 57,929 49,586 70,546 82,150 46,922 66,382 58,219 52,941 58,504
122,941 54,327 16,513 7.318 6,057 9,266 12,438 9,259 170,200 175,000
201,090 351,214 65,241 134,958 2,201,816 764,473 614,607 712,812 266,346 605,643
8,256,460 8,342,386 8,291,051 8,568,321 10,326,654 8,975,843 10,391,795 10,668,911 11,092,414 12,105,310
993,000 1,033,537 1,052,808 1,344,999 1,181,274 1,819,569 2,014,877 1,563,415 1,236,497 996,029
4,556,668 4,310,118 4,362,464 4,311,581 4,613,336 4,478,126 5,629,779 6,718,548 6,333,425 6,323,508
2,685,567 1,427,589 1,008,716 651,094 1,028,453 1,026,521 2,606,888 863,600 1,886,666 3,554,756
152,279 140,513 163,761 160,580 160,451 163,385 187,041 166,866 170,768 176,113
1,729,654 2,171,340 1,778,099 1,793,269 1,805,704 3,050,218 2,231,156 2,062,813 2,201,156 2,158,499
313,261 353,557 333,945 341,963 344,062 327,336 37,455 101,146 86,130 935,642
175,827 165,271 148,777 185,683 3.856.430 163,584 146,271 190,447 204,014 461,928
1,466,001 1,242,033 1,328,559 1,794,554 966,116 3.167.487 7,098,815 11,411,228 1,321,322 1,793,389
363,499 466,280 482,537 597,363 512,828 451,172 445119 409,927 307,589 474,901
5,280,000 - - - - - - - - -
168,106 - - - - - - - - -
8,040 - - - - - - - - -
41,686 - - - - 24,515 32,610 184,250 - 8,235
305,879 555,840 362,291 443,657 279,691 226,844 240,044 272,656 147,909 85,592
18,239,467 11,866,078 11,021,955 11,624,743 14,848,345 14,888,757 20,670,054 23,944,896 13,895,476 16,968,592
{9.983,007) (3,523.692) (2,730.904) (3,056,422) (4,521,691) (5.922,914) {10,278,259) 13,275,985) (2,803,062) (4,863,282)
2,138,437 1,958,394 2,086,218 2,729475 2,093,424 2,991,209 5,868,200 3,457,125 6,154 465 5,906,763
(2,049,767) {1,983, 495) (2,101,654) (1,973,021) (1,970,140) (1,873,180) (5.168,219) (2,629,373) {3,115,149) (2,845,792)
2,209,504 2,097,169 1,987,491 2,090,193 2,576,965 2,503,962 2,530,448 2,643 579 - -
2,945,000 - - - 3,410,000 2,610,000 8,083,543 - - -
4,525,000 - - - - - - 6,720,000 - -
- - 1,398,246 - 1,520,000 - - 4,780,000 - -

- - 18,898 - - - - 553,742 - -

- - 630,970 - - - - - - -

- 227,844 - - - - - - 41,558 -

- - (1,144,247) - (1,833,955) - - (2,700,868) - -

162,174 - - - - - - - - -

- 429,781 - - - - - - - -

- - {18,798) - {17,505} - - - - -

- 19,186 2,600 - - - - - - -
9,930,348 2,748,879 2,859,724 2,846,647 5,778,789 6,131,991 11,413,972 12,824,205 3,080,874 3,060,971
(52,659) $ (774,813) $ 128,820 § (209,775) $ 1,257,098 § 209077 § 1135713 § (451,780 $ 277812 $  (1,802,311)
12.02% 17.89% 17.52% 21.56% 13.80% 26.29% 41.00% 24.42% 13.32% 16.21%



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Table 5

Taxable

Assessed

Total Estimated Value as a

Taxable Total Actual Percentage

Fiscal Real Personal [a] Motor  Assessed Direct Taxable of Actual

Year Property  Property Utilities  Vehicles Value Tax R~ Vaiue TavahlaVialon

2008 $ 55940 $ 7697 $ 1652 $ 10421 $ 75710 $ 52.640 $ 485765 15.59%
2009 56,560 7,446 1,663 10,083 75,752 54.552 478,410 12 %
2010 56,166 6,855 1,733 9,731 74,485 56.746 475,007 15.68%
2011 55,746 4,942 82 9,741 70,511 56.466 422,422 16.69%
2012 57,032 6,296 69 9,848 73,245 55.068 488,629 14.99%
2013 56,870 6,677 1,731 9,923 75,201 54.631 432,743 17.38%
2014 57,802 7,154 1,767 9,935 76,658 54.393 438,971 17.46%
2015 59,597 6,869 1,911 9,843 78,220 53.722 451,785 17.31%
2016 61,149 7,056 2,004 10,171 80,380 53.359 459,831 17.48%
2017 61,938 6,954 1,923 10,117 80,932 53.287 468,506 17.27%

Source: Cowley County Clerk, Treasurer, and Appraiser Offices

Notes: Property in Cowley County is reassessed annually. Commercial property is assessed at 25%
of actual value, and residential at 11.5%.

[a] includes oil and gas. Beginning in 2007, certain types of personal property were removed
from the tax rolls.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1,000 of assessed dollars)

City of Winfield Direct Rates

Overlapping Rates-Other Governments

Operating Debt
Year Rate Service
2008 40.893 11.747
2009 45.363 9.189
2010 47.096 9.650
2011 46.816 9.650
2012 45.704 9.364
2013 45.352 9.279
2014 45.252 9.141
2015 44.693 9.029
2016 45.330 8.029
2017 45.350 7.937

Total
Direct
P~
52.640
54.552
56.746
56.466
55.068
54.631
54.393
53.722
53.359
53.287

Source: Cowley County Clerk's office

usb State of

465 Kansas
60.679 1.500
59.346 1.500
62.251 1.500
63.096 1.500
58.600 1.500
62.909 1.500
55.795 1.500
55.752 1.500
51.193 1.500
50.995 1.500

Cowley

O Allann

19.9/6
20.226
20.219
20.013
19.020
19.388
18.790
18.915
18.998
20.302

Cowley

MNAvintg

42.2/0
42.064
43.036
43.420
40.100
43.302
43.186
43.568
43.449
45.063

Table 6

Total Direct &
Overlapping
Rate

177.065
177.688
183.752
184.495
174.288
181.730
173.664
173.457
168.499
171.147

Notes: The city's property tax rates are set annually by the City commission. Rates for debt service are set
based on each year's requirements. Overlapping rates are those of local and county govenrments that ap.
to property owners within the City of Winfield.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table 7
2017 2008 )
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
City City
Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed  Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation [a] Rank Value [a] Valuation [a] Rank Value [a]
Newell Rubbermaid $ 6,485,969 1 917% $ 5,718,809 1 7.43%
Walmart 2,147,545 2 3.04% 2,581,800 2 3.35%
General Electric Company 1,593,564 3 2.25% 1,203,983 4 1.56%
WestRock 1,559,391 4 2.20% -
Union Pacific Railroad 982,513 5 1.39% 387,500 10 0.50%
Galaxy Tool Corporation 873,567 6 1.23% 491,684 8 0.64%
Calmar 700,345 7 0.99% -
Novogroder (Dillons Stores) 553,848 8 0.78% -
Kevin Coon 553,848 9 0.78% 663,200 7 0.86%
Winfield Hospitality 563,104 10 0.80% -
Winfield Economic Development, Inc N/A 1,344,562 3 1.75%
Southwestern Bell N/A 687,661 5 0.89%
Schwans Home Service N/A 441137 9 0.57%
Philco Inns N/A 677,527 6 0.88%

[a] excludes motor vehicle valuation

Source: Cowley County Clerk Office
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(¢ Y OF WINI

:LD, KANSAS

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxes Collected within the
Levied Fiscal Year of Levy Delinquent
For Fiscal Percentage Tax

Year Year Amount of Levy Collectinre
2008 $ 3,361,313 $ 3,093,973 92.05% $ 60,621
2009 3,439,637 3,357,994 97.63% 65,116
2010 3,571,586 3,462,827 96.95% 53,150
2011 3,532,436 3,493,214 98.89% 32,621
2012 3,532,435 3,371,833 95.45% 42,135
2013 3,590,753 3,484,949 97.05% 102,552
2014 3,562,198 3,538,003 99.32% 165,638
2015 3,632,089 3,497,585 96.30% 63,113
2016 3,674,502 3,537,750 96.28% 58,798
2017 3,767,764 3,518,922 93.40% 59,729

Source: Cowley County Clerk and County Treasurer's office

Table 8
Total

Tax Percentage

~nllections of Levv
$ 3,154,594 93.85%
3,423,110 99.52%
3,515,977 98.44%
3,525,835 99.81%
3,413,968 96.65%
3,587,501 99.91%
3,703,641 103.97%
3,560,698 98.03%
3,596,548 97.88%
3,578,651 94.98%
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Table 9
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Legal debt limit [1} $ 22713 $ 22726 $ 22,346 $ 21,153 $ 21,974 $ 22560 $ 22,997 $ 23466 $ 24,114 $ 21,226
Total debt applicable
to debt limit 24,525 22,853 22,178 20,105 14,865 18,435 19,525 17,135 17,705 21,340

Less self-
supporting debt [2] (11,563) (10,911) _(10,555) (9,696) (5,773) (5,347) (4,908) (5,007) (4,503) (3,990)

Total net debt
applicable to fimit 12,962 11,942 11,623 10,409 9,092 13,088 14,617 12,128 13,202 17,350

Legal debt margin $ 9751 $ 10,784 §$ 10723 $ 10,744 $ 12882 $ 9472 $ 8380 §$ 11,338 § 10912 $ 3,876

Total net debt
applicable to the limit as

a percentage of debt
limit 57.07%  52.55% 52.01% 4921% 41.38% 58.01% 63.56% 51.68% 54.75%  81.74%

Legal debt margin calculation for fiscal year 2017
Assessed taxable value $ 70,754

Debt limit (30% of total assessed vi $ 21,226
[1] Under K.S.A. 10-308, the city's outstanding bonded indebtedness cannot exceed 30 percent of assessed valuation of the city.

[2] Principal amount of City's general obligation and state revolving fund debt which is anticipated to be paid from net revenues from the
operation of the City's water and sewer systems.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Table 10
_ Governmental Activitie~
General  daies 1ax Ceruricates
Obligation Revenue Temporary KDOT Contractual of Capital
Year Bonds Bonds Notes Loan Debt Participation 1
2008 $ 11,730 § 145 § - % 1232 § 136 § 87 % 827
2009 10,870 25 - 1,702 104 - 992
2010 11,552 - - 71 72 - 831
2011 10,373 - - 36 39 - 663
2012 9,071 - 3,410 - 33 - 498
2013 7,843 - 4,695 - 128 - 349
2014 6,551 - 7,525 - 96 - 235
2015 12,697 - - - 64 - 118
2016 11,361 - 2,330 - 32 - 36
2017 10,103 - 7,700 - 167 - 359
Business-type Activities
General Total Percentage
Obligation  Capital Temporary KDHE Certificates Primary of Personal Per Current
Y- Bonds Leases Notes Loans of Participation ~ Government Income Capita  Population
VIV - 3 - 8 - $11,563 $ 1,273 § 26,993 257% $ 2,348 11,497
2009 - 106 - 10,911 860 25,570 2.27% 2,294 11,148
2010 6,618 58 - 3,937 445 23,584 2.08% 1,917 12,301
2011 6,197 9 - 3,499 - 20,816 1.74% 1,693 12,292
2012 5,774 3,064 550 - - 22,400 1.87% 1,812 12,365
2013 5,347 2,581 550 - - 21,493 1.48% 1,743 12,333
2014 4,944 2,088 550 - - 21,989 1.58% 1,794 12,258
2015 5,067 1,583 - - - 19,529 1.40% 1,600 12,204
2016 4,503 1,100 - - - 19,362 1.45% 1,576 12,284
2017 3,990 640 - - - 22,959 1.77% 1,897 12,104

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

General obligation bond balances include general obligation debt, net of related premiums, discounts, and adjustments
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2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 [c]

CITY OF W FIELD, KANSAS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

[a] See Table 5 for property value data
[b] In accordance with KSA 10-1116 and KSA 79-5028, KDOT loans constitute 'bonds'

characterization. KDOT debt for street improvements are being repaid as general obligation debt.

{c] Includes $3,990 thousand of general obligation debt, that is being repaid from water
revenues, net of related premiums, discounts, and adjustments.

Table 11
General Bonded LESS:
B Debt Outstanding [b] Amounts Percentage of
General Restricted Actual Taxable
Obligation Temporary  KDOT  to Repaying Value of Per
Dands Notes GO Debt Principal Total Property [a] Capita
$ 11,730 $ 1232 $ 1232 $ (79) $ 14,115 2.91% $ 1,228
10,870 1,702 1,072 (191) 13,453 2.81% 1,207
18,170 71 72 (131) 18,182 3.83% 1,478
16,570 - 36 (159) 16,447 3.89% 1,338
14,865 3,960 - (208) 18,617 3.81% 1,506
13,190 5,245 - (463) 17,972 4.15% 1,457
11,496 8,075 - (314) 19,257 4.39% 1,571
17,764 - - (478) 17,286 3.83% 1,¢ 3
15,375 2,330 - (594) 17,111 3.72% 1,393
13,640 7,700 - (909) 20,431 4.44% 1,663
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Governmental Activities Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 2017

Table 12
Percent of
Debt City
Applicable Share
Debt to City of Debt
Direct debt:
General obligation bonded debt $ 9,650,000 100.00% $ 9,650,000
Capital leases 358,663 100.00% 358,663
Total direct debt 10,008,663
verlapping debt:
USD 465 $ 11,495,000 62.02% $ 7,129,618
Cowley County 1,535,000 27.29% 418,917
Total overlapping debt 7,548,535
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 17,557,198

Sources: Assessed valuation provided by Cowley County Clerk.
Debt outstanding data is provided by each governmental unit.

Percentage of debt applicable to the city of Winfield is based on the proportion that the assessed
valuation of the City of Winfield bears to the assessed valuation of the overlapping entity.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Table 13
Electric Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Participatic~ Nkt I
Utility Less: Net
Service Operating Available Debt Service
Moo Mhavmnn  Eumncncno ra Paven~ Principal Interest Coverage
2008 $ 24,141 26,231 $ (2,090) $ 84 12 (21.77)
2009 24,760 21,093 3,667 87 8 38.60
2010 21,669 20,964 705 90 5 7.42
2011 24,650 23,879 771 93 1 8.20
2012 26,098 24,202 1,896 - - -
2013 25,076 25,182 (106) - - -
2014 29,333 29,232 101 - - -
2015 26,786 26,849 (63) - - -
2016 27,452 26,651 801 - - -
2017 27,697 2,578 25,119 - - -
Water Debt
Utility Less: Net
Service Operating Available Debt Service

Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2,007 2,164 1,764 400 301 305 1
2008 $ 2,054 1,810 $ 244 317 289 0.40
2009 2,041 1,819 222 329 276 0.37
2010 2,135 1,741 394 342 263 0.65
2011 2,376 2,326 50 421 149 0.09
2012 2,470 2,419 51 421 148 0.09
2013 2,189 2,328 (139) 427 138 (0.25)
2014 2,280 2,201 79 439 129 0.14
2015 2,334 2,295 39 446 120 0.07
2016 2,349 1,976 373 504 125 0.59
2017 2,499 2,324 175 513 22 0.33

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

[1] Operating expenses do not include interest/amortization expense, but do include payments in lieu of

franchise fees

[2] Certification of Participation was paid in full in 2012.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS
Piedged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Wastewater Debt

Table 13 (cont.)

Utility Less: Net
Service Operating Available Debt Service

Year Charges Expenses [1] Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2008 % 1646 $ 1,110 % 536 $ 363 $ 151 1.04
2009 1,672 936 736 413 153 1.30
2010 1,810 1,095 715 434 132 1.26
2011 1,943 1,729 214 438 125 0.38
2012 2,073 1,781 292 465 87 0.53
2013 2,095 1,629 466 482 66 0.85
2014 2,016 1,483 533 493 55 0.97
2015 1,941 1,955 (14) 506 43 (0.03)
2016 1,974 2,107 (133) 516 32 (0.24)
2017 1,855 2,018 (163) 536 27 (0.29)

Quail Ridge Golf Course Certificates of Participation Debt [2]
Golf Less: Net
Course Operating Available Debt Service
Vear Fees Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2008 § 510 § 731§ (221) $ 312§ 41 (0.83)
2009 509 681 (172) 326 31 (0.48)
2010 468 615 (147) 325 20 (0.43)
2011 459 753 (294) 352 7 (0.82)
2012 449 674 (225) - - -
2013 412 564 (152) - - -
2014 348 539 (191) - - -
2015 347 611 (264) - - -
2016 310 557 (247) - - -
2017 318 678 (360) - - -
Notes: [ 1 iarding the Cith  outstanding debt can be found in the nc i to the financial statements.

[1] Operating expenses do not include interest/amortization expense, but do include payments in lieu of

franchise fees

[2] Certification of Participation was paid in full in 2012.

- 144 -



CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)
Table 13 (cont.)

Special Assessment Bonds

Special
Assessment Debt Service [1]

Year Crliggtinng Principal Interest Coverage

2008 $ 168 § 155 § 68 0.75
2009 164 69 123 0.85
2010 206 186 1562 0.61
2011 208 192 145 0.62
2012 257 219 138 0.72
2013 205 225 130 0.58
2014 224 237 121 0.63
2015 205 253 112 0.56
2016 243 260 102 0.67
2017 224 182 65 0.91

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds [2]
Sales Tax Debt Service

Year Collections Principal Interest Coverage _
2008 $ 1,768 § 115§ 9 14.26
2009 1,643 120 5 13.14
2010 1,663 25 1 63.58
2011 1,781 - - -
2012 1,746 - - -
2013 1,766 - - -
2014 2 - - -
2015 2,698 - - -
2016 2,653 - - -
2017 2,629 - - -

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the nc  to the financial statements.

[1}11 ot service includes total project costs, including city-at-large portion

[2] The City's 1 percent sales tax is pledged against payment of the 2002 refunding sales tax bonds. Bonds
paid in full in 2010
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)
Table 13 (concluded)

Stormwater Debt

Stormwater Less: Net
Revenue Operating Available Debt Service
Year Collections  Expenses [1] Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2008 $ 158 $ 92 $ 66 $ 70 % 28 0.67
2009 149 35 114 73 25 13
2010 149 61 88 75 23 0.90
2011 150 114 36 82 9 0.40
2012 150 106 44 84 7 0.48
2013 162 110 42 85 6 0.46
2014 151 94 57 87 6 0.61
2015 150 132 18 90 3 0 )
2016 150 35 115 9 1 1.25
2017 149 28 121 - - -

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

[1] Operating expenses do not include interest/amortization expense, but do include payments in lieu of
franchise fees
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14
Personal Per

Income [2] Capita

(thousands Personal School Unemployment
Year Population [1] of dollars) Income [2]* Enrallment [3] Rate [4]
2008 11,497 $ 1,051,005 $ 31,713 § 2,434 5.40%
2009 11,148 1,126,122 30,391 2,475 6.80%
2010 12,301 1,135,511 30,359 2,536 7.10%
2011 12,292 1,196,317 32,982 2,461 6.20%
2012 12,365 1,199,453 37,004 2,318 5.80%
2013 12,333 1,454,597 38,278 2,449 4.80%
2014 12,258 1,390,203 38,656 2,332 4.40%
2015 12,204 1,390,203 38,656 2,156 4.50%
2016 12,284 1,337,790 37,381 2,303 4.20%
2017 12,104 1,295,687 36,240 2,290 3.00%

[1] Provided by League of Kansas Municipalities

[2] Provided by U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis

[3] Provided by U.S.D. #465. Includes public school system only. Non-weighted FTE.
[4] From cowleycounty.org/employment-statistics, end of year

* in 2012, Kansas University Institute for Policy and Social Research combined City of Arkansas City and
City of Winfield as a Micropolitan Area.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table 15
2017 _ 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Estimated County Estimated County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Creekstone Farms Premium Beef 806 1 4.97% 620 3 3.65%
Newell-Rubbermaid 800 2 4.93% 512 4 3.01%
General Electric Aviation 750 3 4.62% 830 1 4.88%
U.S. D. #465 625 4 3.85% 750 2 4.41%
U.S. D. #470 440 5 2.71% 400 5 2.35%
William Newton Memorial Hospital 310 6 1.91% 300 6 1.76%
Kan-Pak 277 7 1.71% - -
WestRock (Silgan Dispensing) 276 8 1.70% 225 9 1.32%
Southwestern College 214 9 1.32% 195 13 1.15%
SCKRMC 205 10 1.26% - -
Total employment 16,223

Source: cowleycounty.org and KS Dept of Labor
The City of Winfield is located approximately twelve miles from the city of Arkansas City, Kansas (population 12,063).

Both cities are located in Cowley County, and many employers have work forces consisting of residents of both cities.
Major employers listed above are for the Arkansas City/Winfield populations
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General government
Management services
Legal/court
Utility billing
Engineering
Service and operations center

Public safety
Fire
Police

Public works/stormwater

Cemetery

Culture and recreation

Health and welfare

Economic development

Electric

Gas

Water

Refuse

Wastewater

Golf course

Total

Source: City records

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 16
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

14 14 13 13 13 13 14 13 13 16 )
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

7 7 7 7 7 8 7 7 7 9 8

8 8 8 8 7 8 7 7 7 7 6
10 9 9 9 8 9 10 10 10 10 7
20 20 20 20 19 19 20 28 29 26 29
30 28 31 32 31 31 26 31 30 26 26
7 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 8
29 29 28 29 29 28 26 26 25 24 26
12 11 11 10 9 8 8 8 8 8 8
12 12 13 12 12 11 12 12 10 11 10
11 10 10 10 10 9 8 8 9 8 8
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
4 4 4 4 4 3 3 2 3 2 4
185 179 181 181 176 174 168 179 178 174 171

-149 -



General government
Building permits issued
Muncipal court cases

Police
Class | Offenses
Domestic Violence/

DUWDrug Arrests
Accidents

Fire/EMS

Total responses*

Parks and recreation

Aquatic center attendance

Annual lake permits
Cemetery

Cemetery spaces sold
Streets maintenance

Resurfacing, annual in tons
Electric utility

MWH sold, annual

Peak daily consumption, MWH
Gas Utility

MCF sold, annual
Water Utility

Gallons sold annual, in thousands
Refuse (annual tons, in thousands)

Refuse collected

Recyclables collected
Wastewater Utility

Sewage treatment, avg daily flow

(in thousands of galtons)

Sources: City departments

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 17

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
254 309 381 328 324 313 310 353 310 454
1,418 1,141 908 1,066 929 984 799 901 739 937
799 630 610 762 615 734 558 548 434 422
301 327 385 276 181 201 165 131 105 181
395 408 362 311 346 322 304 N/A 316 284
1,530 1,481 1,682 1,723 1,734 1,606 2,239 2,527 2,788 3,205
18,466 19,931 20618 20565 17,613 14,441 15,888 N/A 16,480 15,963
1,851 2,315 3,088 2,159 1,548 1,429 1,811 2,035 2,160 2,166
61 85 62 77 77 49 45 33 43 100
1,343 1,965 1,285 4,660 5,774 3,220 3,583 2,515 2,902 8,514
306,588 259,957 281,210 277,467 293,650 304,843 309,246 292,191 295480 291,868
66,000 59,420 61,132 65,385 66,825 64,734 63,408 61,300 64,376 63,563
636,285 576,264 582,502 574,253 469,299 573,585 648,287 518,406 445930 473,019
647,747 661,432 688,586 762,729 741,021 705878 700,180 633,399 583,415 583,606
8,142 7,883 8,170 8,032 7,617 7,784 7,783 7,640 7.813 8,059
1,241 1,176 1,174 1,147 1,150 518 697 827 887 988
1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

In July 2014, City of Winfield Fire Department took over Winfield Area EMS operations. Includes Fire & EMS calls.

N/A - information not available
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Police
Stations
Patrol Units (marked)

Fire stations

Public works
Str 5 (miles)

Parks and recreation
Public park acreage
Base/softball diamonds
Soccer fields
Football fields

Electric Utility
Electric lines (miles) [1]

Gas Utility
Gas main lines (miles) [1]

Water Ultility
Water main lines (miles) [1]
Fire hydrants [1]

Storage capacity (thousands)

Refuse
Collection trucks

Wastewater
Sanitary sewer (miles)
Treatment capacity
(thousands, per day)

114
95
95

535
2,750

7

4,000

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

anng

114
95
95

535
2,750

7

4,000

Aanan

114
95
95

535
2,750

7

4,000

ANn4a4

114
95
95

535
2,750

71

4,000

20

114
95
95

535
2,750

73

4,000

2013 2014 2015 2016
1 1 1 1
22 23 26 25
1 1 1 1
130 130 130 130
294 294 296 296
5 5 5 5
6 6 6 6
1 1 1 1
114 114 114 114
95 94 94 94
95 95 95 95
535 535 535 535
2,750 2,750 2,750 2,750
5 5 5 5
73 76 76 76
4,000 4,000 4000 4,000

Table 18

114
94
95

535
2,750

76

4,000
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CITY OF WINFIELD
WINFIELD, KANSAS

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

RELATED TO THE AUDIT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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City of Winfiald
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’'s
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representation

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
)y ientation letter dated August 31, 2018.

Management’s Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statement or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on that statement, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles 1d auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions
occurred during the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

ot

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
information, other post-employment benefits other then pensions, the schedule of the City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability, the schedule of the City’'s contributions, and the notes to the required supplementary
information, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the combinii  statements and individual fund statements, which accompany the

financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supr y inforn ‘on, we n inquil of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods ot preparing the information 1 nine that the
information complies witt  :counting principles ger ly ceptedinthe Un | States of America, the method of

preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section or the statistical section, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, v do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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We greatly appreciate the assistance and helpfulness provided by City personnel during the recent audit. It is a
pleasure to work with individuals who respond to our questions and requests in a quick and efficient manner. Our
thanks to each employee involved with the audit. If you have any questions or need us to stop by, please give us
acall.

RESTRICTION ON USE

This information is intended solely for the inforn  ion and use of the City Commission and management oft  City
of Winfield and is notin 1 |to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

5&/‘%%, gan}ux' Hﬁwk v L’_‘j’(. LiLC

Swinaou, Janzeﬁ,_nawk & Loyd, LLC
( tified Public Accountants
Hutchinson, Kansas

August 31, 2018



